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2011 ORDER OF BUSINESS 

         MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION          

      ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 

Saturday, April 16, 2011 
The Delta Hotel 

350 St. Mary Avenue, Winnipeg, Manitoba (Ball Room A) 

11:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

 
The Annual General Meeting of the Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association is scheduled to commence at 11:00 a.m. at The 

Delta Hotel, in Winnipeg, at which time a series of annual reports will be presented. 

 

The reports will be presented for information and any issues arising from the reports will be referred to the Issues Forum, which 

will occur in the afternoon.   

 

Please be advised that members will have an opportunity to discuss issues at the issues forum and any proposed changes to the 

regulations or bylaws at special general meetings leading up to the annual general meeting. 

 

 

A G E N D A - O R D E R   O F   B U S I N E S S 

CHAIR – Shawn Bugden 
 

1. Reading of the minutes of the 2009 Annual General Meeting – Registrar 

2. Reading of the minutes of the Special General Meeting of February 3, 2010 - Registrar 

3. Business arising from the minutes  

4. Report of Executive Treasurer 

5. Registrar’s Report 

6. President’s Address 

7. Report of the Elections Committee 

8. Committee and Liaison Reports (passed for information as a group) 

9. Notice of Motion: 

Gayle Romanetz will move or cause to be moved, seconded by Scott McFeetors “That the MPhA support a $25 levy, 

per member’s annual license fee, to the Manitoba Society of Pharmacists’ Public Relations Committee, for the 

promotion of the profession of pharmacy including Pharmacists Awareness Week, for the 2012 licensing year, and that 

this be subject to annual review at each subsequent annual meeting.”  

10. Faculty of Pharmacy Report and Notice of Motion 

Notice of Motion:  

Pat Trozzo will move or cause to be moved, seconded by Shawn Bugden “That M.Ph.A. support the continuation of the 

$100.00 levy, per member’s annual license fee, to the Faculty of Pharmacy, University of Manitoba, for 2012 licensing 

year. 

10. Unfinished Business 

11. New Business 

 

The Order of Business is designed to allow the formal Annual General Meeting to complete its mandate of closing 

the dealings that have been completed for the previous fiscal year. Reports are to encompass that fiscal year only. 

Those issues requiring detailed discussion or where resolution cannot be established will be forwarded to the Issues 

Forum to be held at the Manitoba Pharmacy Conference.  
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~Annual General Meeting ~ 

~ Rules of Procedure ~ 
 

1. A Notice of Meeting will be forwarded to the entire membership no less than 21 days prior to the 

scheduled meeting. 

 

2. A quorum is required to convene a meeting and to transact any business. A quorum must be at least 5% 

of the membership in attendance. 

 

3. A Parliamentarian will assist with parliamentary procedure as the need arises.  

 

4.  Roberts Rules of Order will govern. 

 

5. The chair of the general meeting may permit discussion of motions that are for information and do not 

require action by the Association.  Motions either simple or by resolution, accepted at an annual general 

meeting, or a special general meeting, requiring action on behalf of the Association shall be forwarded 

to Council for consideration and decision. 

 

6. All members must sign the attendance sign-in sheet. 

 

7. Voting cards will be issued to all voting members. 

 

8. All members may speak only once to any given resolution and debate may be limited, unless 

permission to the contrary is given by the assembly. 

 

9. All members are requested to speak at the microphone and are further requested to identify themselves 

by name before speaking. 

 

10. The mover and seconder can speak first, followed by other speakers.  The mover has the option of 

being the last speaker to the motion. 

 

11. Speakers must address the chair. 

 

12. All members present are encouraged to engage in discussion, but only voting members may make 

motions and vote. 

 

13. The membership of the association consists of the persons whose names are on the register and who 

have paid the fees prescribed in the bylaws. 

 

14. Every member who is a licensed pharmacist is entitled to vote at a meeting of the association. 

 

15. Non-members and observers are welcome but are unable to engage in discussion or vote. 

 

16. Motion forms will be provided.  Motions should be in writing on these forms and the appropriate copy 

given to the chair at the time of making the motion. 

 
Clarification: 

 Only licensed pharmacists have the right to vote, however members who are on the M.Ph.A.  

                register and have paid a fee for the current year can speak but not vote. 

 

 Regarding the right to speak at meetings of the MPhA, Roberts Rules would apply and the   

    members (licensed pharmacists with a vote) attending the meeting would decide in each incident    

   whether or not an attendee at the meeting would have the right to speak.   

 

 

April 2011 
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MINUTES OF THE 132nd ANNUAL MEETING 
 THE MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION 
 The Winnipeg Convention Centre, Winnipeg, Manitoba 
 Saturday, April 10th, 2010 
 _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESIDENT RANDY STEPHANCHEW called the meeting to order at 10:37 a.m. with approximately 80 members in 
attendance. 
 
Quorum declared. 
 
PRESIDENT STEPHANCHEW welcomed everyone to the 132nd Annual Meeting of M.Ph.A.  
 
PRESIDENT STEPHANCHEW introduced all members of M.Ph.A. Council and Staff. 
 
PRESIDENT STEPHANCHEW acknowledged the following guests in attendance: 

 Mr. Rem Weiss, Past President of M.Ph.A. 

 Dr. Jeff Poston, Executive Director of CPhA 
 
MR. DAVID MARR was appointed parliamentarian for the meeting. 
 
THE REGISTRAR was asked to read the names of those members who had passed away since the last annual meeting: 
 
The Registrar addressed the meeting: 
 
“Mr. Chairman, please allow me a few moments to speak about this portion of the agenda.  I have been with this Association for over 25 years.  
Twenty-five years ago and for many years subsequent, I sat, as many of you sit now in the audience, about to hear the names of the pharmacists 
that have passed away since the last Annual General Meeting.  And, I must apologize to all those passing pharmacists for all the years, when to 
me, they were just names on the page.  I know now, what I should have known then, these are not just names that are read by the Registrar.  
They are professionals, colleagues and friends that have practiced their profession for many years, have saved lives or at the very least extended or 
enhanced the quality of lives of many, many people.  So, for me, and now hopefully for you, these are not just names on the page any longer. 
 
It is crystal clear to me the importance of this section of the agenda.  These are the names of pharmacists that, during our moment of silence, we 
recognize their incredible contribution and truly regret their passing;” 
   
 Gerald Nep    March 18, 2009 
 Adam Huchko    June 12, 2009 
 Modest Demchuk    June 25, 2009 
 Alec Kohuch    July 24, 2009 
 Robert L. Clarke    August 16, 2009 
 Gerald Morrow    October 18, 2009 
 Jack Davis     October 26, 2009 
 Margaret Nowatzki    January 22, 2010 
 Irwin Shwortz    February 8, 2010 
 Joseph Lavitt    February 12, 2010 
 Sydney Gurvey    January 23, 2010 
 Theodore Sims    March 10, 2010 
 Don Watts    April 2, 2010 
 
One Minute’s silence was observed in memory of the above members. 
 
INTRODUCTION BY PRESIDENT STEPHANCHEW: 
 
The Order of Business is designed to allow the formal Annual General Meeting to complete its mandate in closing the dealings 
that have been completed for the previous fiscal year.  Reports have been circulated and encompass that fiscal year only.  By-laws 
or Regulation changes should be put forward as part of the Annual General Meeting or as part of a Special General Meeting.  
Those issues requiring detailed discussion or where resolution cannot be established will be forwarded to the Issues Forum to be 
held at the Manitoba Pharmacy Conference or at a Special General Meeting. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 
PRESIDENT STEPHANCHEW stated that the agenda for the meeting has been circulated and asked the membership if there 
was any new business they wished to add to the agenda. 
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No Additions to the Agenda. 
 
ERRORS OR OMISSIONS IN THE 2009 ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES: 
 
No errors or omissions. 
 
1.     READING OF THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2009 ANNUAL GENERAL  

 MEETING: 
 
MOTION #1: MOVED BY HEATHER LANGTRY, SECONDED BY KRISTINE PETRASKO THAT the reading 

of the April 18, 2009 Annual General Meeting Minutes be waived. 
 
  CARRIED 
 
MOTION #2:   MOVED BY HEATHER LANGTRY, SECONDED BY KRISTINE PETRASKO, THAT  the April 

18, 2009 Annual General Meeting Minutes be approved. 
 
  CARRIED 
 
MOTION #3: MOVED BY CAREY LAI, SECONDED BY KYLE MacNAIR THAT the reading of the February 3, 

2010 Special General Meeting Minutes be waived. 
 
  CARRIED 
 
MOTION #4:   MOVED BY CAREY LAI, SECONDED BY KYLE MacNAIR, THAT the February 3, 2010, Special 

General Meeting Minutes be approved. 
 
  CARRIED 
 
2. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
MOTION #5:  MOVED BY PAT TROZZO, SECONDED BY PENNY MURRAY THAT the Business Arising 

from the Minutes be approved as published in the 2009 Annual Reports. 
 

 CARRIED 
 
3. EXECUTIVE TREASURER’S REPORT – Penny Shefrin 
 
MOTION #6: MOVED BY PENNY SHEFRIN, SECONDED BY PENNY MURRAY THAT the Executive 

 Treasurer’s Report be accepted by this annual meeting. 
   

CARRIED 
  
4. REGISTRAR'S REPORT – Ronald Guse 
 
MOTION #7: MOVED BY PAT TROZZO, SECONDED BY SHAWN BUGDEN THAT the Report of the Registrar 

be received by this Annual Meeting. 
 
  CARRIED 
 
5. PRESIDENT'S ADDRESS – Randy Stephanchew 
 
PRESIDENT STEPHANCHEW yielded control of the chair to Vice-President Bugden: 
 
The Chairman asked the President to present his address to the membership.  
 
President’s Address: 
 
“Good Morning, Ladies and Gentleman, and welcome to the 132nd Annual General Meeting of the Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association.  On 
behalf of Council, I welcome this opportunity to report to you regarding the events and the matters that have been considered, discussed and worked 
on by Council over the last year. 
 
It’s been a very busy and challenging year….as always.  The staff and Council have been working hard on your behalf on a number of fronts, 
including such things as: 
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 The PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) Consultative Process….interviews, stakeholder consultations, focus group sessions, a Town Hall 
Meeting, Option Papers, and the Organizational Capacity Report. 

 The Regulated Health Professions Act (HPA) was passed…..committee hearings and meetings with stakeholders and government to 
consider amendments. 

 Organized a Special General Meeting…..looking at the recommendations of the PwC Organizational Capacity Review Report and 
seeking your input and guidance on how we can improve our processes and governance. 

 Ongoing meetings with Deputy Minister, Assistant Deputy Minister and reps from MHHL around MPhA’s action plan and 
implementation Strategy in relation to the recommendations contained in PwC’s Organizational Capacity Review Report; and 

 Working closely and improving relations with MSP….ongoing meetings of the Working Group of the Steering Committee around the 
13 impediments previously identified by the Manitoba Society of Pharmacists (MSP) regarding the draft regulations. 
 

A year ago, the MPhA in collaboration with MSP contracted Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC) to consult on our Regulations development.  This 
consultation process has been supported by the Government of Manitoba, and provided an impartial expert perspective on our efforts to provide you 
with the best possible Regulations. 
 
Price Waterhouse Coopers (PwC) was hired to engage in this consultative process and to review three project objectives: 

1. To identify any capacity issues and/or constraints within the MPhA that may have impacted past efforts to reach an agreement on the 
regulation of IPS and the Bill 41 Regulations and to develop a plan to address these issues and/or constraints. 

2. To identify a process to reach a workable agreement regarding the regulation of IPS operating in the province of Manitoba; and  
3. To re-engage the members of the MPhA and Manitoba Pharmacists in the process of refining and building consensus around the draft 

Bill 41 regulations through meaningful consultation and communications, which will ultimately enable ratification of Bill 41 
Regulations. 
 

This has been a significant commitment by the MPhA and the MSP, and involved a dedicated commitment by each of our organizations.  Many 
long hours have been committed to this endeavor and I can tell you that there is no lack of commitment at the MPhA to take advantage of this 
opportunity to improve our communication with you and our collective development of the new Regulations.  The information we have learned will 
help us to develop and present to the members regulations that we can all support. 
 
In August of 2009, PwC completed the MPhA Organizational Capacity Review Report.  This report is very thorough in its findings and 
involved interviews with pharmacists, MPhA staff, past and present Council members, stakeholders, and the Presidents and Registrars from four 
other provincial pharmacy regulatory authorities, and an in depth review of documents posted at the websites of those four provinces and MPhA. 
 
I want to commend everyone who has participated in any of these PwC events for your active participation, hard work, and commitment to make 
the Regulations better.  The resultant Option Papers and Organizational Capacity Review Report are thorough in their consideration of the 
issues.  If you have not had a chance to read the Option Papers or the Organizational Capacity Review Report, I strongly recommend that you do 
so, as Council will be taking these reports and recommendations very seriously. 
 
In the report, PwC has made 15 recommendations for change involving MPhA Council and Staff.  Council reviewed 15 recommendations and 
has determined there are a number of recommendations that can and will be acted upon by Council.  In addition, Council has sought the feedback 
of members by way of the Special General Meeting held on February 3rd, 2010, to discuss three important recommendations within the report, 
namely, the size of Council, the makeup of Council and the possible need to stagger the term of Council.  Your feedback from this meeting has 
been discussed at the Council table and will be part of MPhA’s action plan going forward. 
 
Council has taken the recommendations very seriously and has prepared a detailed Action Plan and an Implementation Strategy that will help 
MPhA improve.  Many of these have already been acted upon and more work will occur over the coming year.  This information has been shared 
with the Deputy Minister of Health and forms the basis for quarterly meetings Council continues to have the Deputy Minister so we can provide 
updates on our progress. 
 
In addition to the PwC process, Council has been working behind the scenes to gather the input and recommendation of stakeholder groups.  
Council understands that it is essential to receive these comments and to liaise with stakeholder groups, as these organizations speak on your 
behalf and their opinions and recommendation are important.  In particular, the MPhA has been working very closely with the Manitoba Society 
of Pharmacists through the work of the Working Group of the PwC Steering Committee.  Great progress has been made to resolve many of the 
outstanding issues and I am confident we can find productive ways to resolve the more difficult issues that remain.  While the mandate of the MSP 
and the MPhA may be different, we have a great deal of common ground.  Our collaboration and discussions have been very productive and on 
behalf of Council, I can say that the MPhA appreciates all of the hard work, effort, and commitment by the representatives of both our 
organizations.  This input can only make the Regulations stronger and better suited to serve the public good as we begin to draft the next 
regulations policy document. 
 
This Council has laid a very good foundation for the new Regulations to begin to be drafted.  It is my hope that the new Council can present to the 
members a draft regulations policy document in the not so distant future.  Lessons have been learned at the Association about the importance of 
collaboration, effective communication, and working with the membership to accomplish the best results for Manitoba pharmacy.  This was also 
made abundantly clear in the Pw C Organizational Capacity Review Report. 
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Of course, there have been a host of other issues aside from the Regulations development process that have needed to be addressed.  On the 
Government side, the government introduced a new Regulated Health Professions Act, and in June 2009, it received royal assent.  This updated 
modern legislation would ensure all health professions in Manitoba are governed by consistent, uniform regulations with an enhanced focus on 
patient safety and accountability. 
 
Council was also actively involved with the H1N1 Preparedness planning and provided direction and support to the great work of MPhA staff.  
This was a great opportunity for us to collaborate with and support the other health care professions, all for the public good.  Even though a full 
pandemic did not arrive, it clearly showed how MPhA was capable of providing critical health care support and expertise. 
 
As I look back over the last two years, I’m very proud of the work we have done.  We have been committed to improve ourselves and we have 
improved ourselves.  We have been committed to improving relations with the members, key stakeholders and government and that we have done.  
We can all agree that Pharmacy practice today is diverse, and takes many different forms.  Your Council has been composed of a very diverse 
group of pharmacist practitioners, from all scopes of practice.  This is the true reform that we needed two years ago.  No one group can set the 
agenda for all types of pharmacy practice.  We need to hear all of these voices in order to reach the best decisions for the practice of pharmacy and 
for the public. 
 
That said, at the Council table, each of our councilors puts aside their personal interest and remains committed to ensuring excellence in pharmacy 
practice and protection of the public.   I believe that every member of this association is committed to serving the public good.  Each of you, in your 
practice, works day and night to ensure the safe delivery of pharmacy care.  These commitments, to serving the public and ensuring safe pharmacy 
practice, are reflected in your Council.  All year I have seen them work tirelessly at committees and at meetings dealing with issues as they arise.  
These are volunteer positions but each of your Council has freely given of their time to try and make things better.  And for that I thank you. 
 
I would also like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the hard work and dedication of MPhA staff, without whom we would never be able to 
accomplish our objectives and fulfill our mandate.  Registrar Ron Guse and Deputy Registrar Susan Lessard-Friesen, Assistant Registrars Ross 
Forsyth and Dexter Boyd (whose contract ended in December 2009), are well supported by Executive Assistant, Judy Rae, and Administrative 
Assistant , Bev Robinson, Communications Coordinator and Quality Assurance Secretary, Kathy Cobb, and Administrative Secretary Pamela 
Gordon.  Thank you all for your hard work over the last year. 
 
Finally, to you the membership, I thank you for the tremendous honor in serving as your President over the last two years.  I have truly grown 
from this experience,  It has given me the opportunity to see the tremendous hard work and effort made by pharmacists at all levels, and the 
contributions that you each make that make our profession so well respected by our patients.  I sincerely thank you for your trust and support and 
for the opportunity to serve you as President. 
 
Vice-President Bugden returned control of the Chair to PRESIDENT STEPHANCHEW. 
 
6. REPORT OF THE ELECTIONS COMMITTEE 
 

The number of votes cast during the recent election was 577, with 21 votes deemed as spoiled.  The Election 
Committee, consisting of Clinton Huber, Scott McFeetors and Jeff Uhl, reported the successful candidates were: 

 
    District #1   District #2 

LAI, Carey   BUGDEN, Shawn 
PETRASKO, Kristine   CORMIER, John 
SANTOS, Dinah   LANGTRY, Heather 
TROZZO, Pasquale   MacNAIR, Kyle 
 

MOTION #8: MOVED BY PENNY SHEFRIN, SECONDED BY PENNY MURRAY THAT  the ballots for the 
2010 election be destroyed. 

 
  CARRIED 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS & LIAISON REPORTS: 
 

a) Professional Development Committee Report – Shawn Bugden 
b) Standards of Practice Committee – Penny Murray/Pat Trozzo 
c) NAPRA Report – Pat Trozzo 
d) Board of Examiners – David Collins 
e) Awards and Nominating Committee – Pat Trozzo 
f) Pharmacy Examining Board of Canada Report – Shawn Bugden 
h) CSHP Manitoba Branch Liaison Report – Janice Coates 
i) PrISM Report – Ronald Guse 
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MOTION #9:   MOVED BY DINAH SANTOS, SECONDED BY HEATHER LANGTRY THAT the Annual 
Committee and Liaison Reports above be approved by the Annual Meeting for information.  

 
  CARRIED 
 
9. FACULTY OF PHARMACY REPORT 
 
MOTION #10: MOVED BY KYLE MacNAIR, SECONDED BY KRISTINE PETRASKO THAT the Faculty of 

Pharmacy Report be accepted for information. 
 
 CARRIED 
 
MOTION #11: MOVED BY PAT TROZZO, SECONDED BY PENNY MURRAY THAT M.Ph.A. support the 

continuation of the $100.00 levy, per member’s annual licence fee, to the Faculty of Pharmacy, University 
of Manitoba, for the 2011 licensing year, and that this be subject to an annual review at each subsequent 
annual meeting. 

 
 CARRIED 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 No unfinished business. 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 
           
    a)    Omnibus Motion 

 
Mr. Ernest Stefanson presented the following motion: 
 
MOTION #12: MOVED BY ERNEST STEFANSON, SECONDED BY CLAIRE GILLIS THAT, all acts, contracts, 

elections, appointments and payments made by council of the M.Ph.A. since the last Annual Meeting in 
2009 as set forth and referred to in the minutes of council or of statements submitted to this meeting be the 
same and are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

  
  CARRIED 
 
Certificates of Merit were presented to the following members for their service on M.Ph.A. Council: 

 Leann McCannel 

 Penny Murray 

 Penny Shefrin 

 Kim Thiessen 

 Kris Thorkelson 

MOTION #13: MOVED BY CAREY LAI, SECONDED BY GAYLE ROMANETZ THAT the  meeting  
  be adjourned at 11:15 a.m. 
 
  CARRIED 

 

 

BUSINESS ARISING  
 

From the April 10, 2010 Annual General Meeting 

 

MOTION #14: MOVED BY PAT TROZZO, SECONDED BY PENNY MURRAY THAT M.Ph.A. support the 

continuation of the $100.00 levy, per member’s annual licence fee, to the Faculty of Pharmacy, 

University of Manitoba, for the 2011 licensing year, and that this be subject to an annual review at each 

subsequent annual meeting. 

 

 CARRIED 

 

The Faculty of Pharmacy, University of Manitoba levy was collected with the 2011 pharmacist licence fee and will be 

forwarded to the Faculty of Pharmacy.   
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2011 REPORTS                        
 

 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE TREASURER - Heather Langtry 

 

The year 2010 showed an operating surplus of $127,627 based on total revenue of $1,680,896. 

 

The retained earnings of the Association as at December 31, 2010 were $1,569,370. 

 

Respectfully submitted,    

Heather Langtry, Executive Treasurer 
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Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association  

Budget 2011 
 

Revenue    Professional Development  

Practicing Fees 975,328  P.D. Program Expenses 27,500 

Pharmacy Fees 466,880     

Registration Fees 18,000  Administration Expenses  

Non-Practicing Fees 19,000  CPP Expense 19,000 

Mailing/Notice Subscription 3,000  Accounting & Audit 9,000 

Pharmacy Transfer Fees 6,000  Building - Heat 3,800 

Miscellaneous Income 5,000  Building - Light & Water 6,600 

Fines and Costs 0.00  Building - Maintenance & Repair 14,000 

Other Income 0.00  Building - Taxes 21,000 

     Sale of Supplies                                       3,000 3,000  Building - Insurance 4,000 

     Interest Income                                      22,000 22,000  Staff Development 5,000 

     Lock and Leave Program                       10,000 10,000  Delivery Expense 2,000 

     Rental Income                                          7,500 7,500  Deprec.- Office Equipment 3,500 

     Profess. Development Revenue              5,000 5,000  Deprec. - Building 0.00 

     Satellite Pharmacies                                   735 735  Deprec - Software 10,000 

           Total Other Income                        48,235 48,235  Deprec.- Renovations 0.00 

Total Revenue 1,541,443  Deprec.- Computer Hardware 1,500 

     Deprec - Leasehold Improvement 21,500 

Operational Expenses   Dues & Subscriptions 4,500 

Annual Golf Tournament 0.00  Depreciation - Photocopier 0.00 

Grads Ceremony 4,000  Salaries  659,500 

Field Operations 8,000  Insurance - Group 46,000 

Registrar's Expenses 3,250  Legal Fees  50,000 

Assistant Registrar's Expenses 3,000  Communication Resource 30,000 

Deputy Registrar's Expenses 2,000  Computer Expenses and I/T 15,000 

Faculty of Pharmacy Levy 130,200  Equipment Maintenance 11,000 

NAPRA Delegates 8,000  Printing & Supplies 15,000 

NAPRA Levy 66,000  Pension Plan 40,000 

Contributions - Sundry 2,500  Postage  15,000 

President's Honorarium 6,600  Sundry  3,500 

Council Meetings 47,000  Bank Charges 32,000 

Executive Meetings 8,500  Telephone  11,000 

District Meetings 2,500  EIP Expense 11,000 

Annual Meetings 11,500  External Affairs 10,000 

General/Special Meetings 5,000  Human Resource Management 25,000 

Other Meetings 15,000  Total Administration Expenses 1,099,400 

Complaints Committee 5,000     

Discipline Committee 10,000  Total Operational Expenses 411,550 

Discipline - Legal 38,000  Total P.D. Program Expenses 27,500 

Medals & Awards 13,000  Total Administration Expenses 1,099,400 

Young Leaders Awards 2,500  Total Expenses 1,538,450 

Other Conferences & Travel 20,000     

Total Operational Expenses 411,550     

 TOTAL REVENUE            $        1,541,443.00   
 TOTAL EXPENSE            $        1,538,450.00   

 OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)            $               2,993.00   

 

 
 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2010, and the statements of revenues and expenditures,
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from  material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the  overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion. 

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Manitoba
Pharmaceutical Association as at December 31, 2010, and the results of its operations and  its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audit opinion does not extend to the budget figures as presented by management.

The Exchange

chartered accountants LLP

Winnipeg, Manitoba
March 4, 2011  

100-123 Bannatyne Ave., Winnipeg, MB  R3B 0R3
Telephone: (204) 943-4584  Fax: (204) 957-5195

Toll Free: 1-866-EXG-0303
E-mail: info@exg.ca  Website: www.exg.ca
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2010

2010 2009

ASSETS
CURRENT

Cash $ 807,121 $ 955,024
Marketable securities (Notes 2, 4) 1,259,382 780,703
Accounts receivable 793 -
Accrued interest receivable 6,059 2,917
Prepaid expenses 22,410 9,450
Due from DIA Management Group Inc. (Note 5) 209,619 209,619

2,305,384 1,957,713

CAPITAL ASSETS (Notes 2, 6) 104,542 128,922

INVESTMENT IN DIA MANAGEMENT GROUP LTD. (Notes 2, 9) 957,890 964,725

RESTRICTED ASSET - DUE FROM OPERATING (Note 7) 50,000 -

$ 3,417,816 $ 3,051,360

TRUST FUNDS
Building fund

Due from operating fund $ 13,463 $ 12,900
-

Library fund
Due (to) from operating fund 574 (50)

$ 14,037 $ 12,850

$ 3,431,853 $ 3,064,210
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2010

2010 2009

LIABILITIES
CURRENT

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 70,078 $ 72,285
Deferred income (Note 8) 1,700,081 1,524,482
Due to restricted assets 50,000 -
Due to trust funds 14,037 12,850

1,834,196 1,609,617

NET ASSETS
UNRESTRICTED 1,429,078 1,262,821
INTERNALLY RESTRICTED (Note 7) 50,000 50,000
INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS 104,542 128,922

1,583,620 1,441,743

$ 3,417,816 $ 3,051,360

TRUST FUNDS
Building Fund

Balance, beginning of year $ 12,900 $ 113,610
Add: interest income 263 1,987
Add: donation 300 12,900

Subtotal 13,463 128,497

Less: leasehold improvements - (115,597)

Balance, end of year 13,463 12,900

Library Fund
Balance, beginning of year (50) (442)
Add: contributions received 600 400
Add: miscellaneous receipts 25 -
Less: interest expense (1) (8)

Balance, end of year 574 (50)

Patient Care Fund
Balance, beginning of year - 712
Add: interest income - 12

Subtotal - 724

Transfer to PRISM - (724)

Balance, end of year - -

$ 14,037 $ 12,850

$ 3,431,853 $ 3,064,210

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

_____________________________ Director

_____________________________ Director
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budget
(Unaudited)

2010 2010 2009

FEE REVENUE
Practicing fees $ 949,860 $ 986,087 $ 878,978
Pharmacy fees 440,230 452,576 431,404
Fines and costs - 2,050 7,500
Registration fees 12,000 34,740 15,435
Non-practicing fees 19,000 18,815 18,523
Miscellaneous income 5,000 9,162 5,174
Pharmacy transfer fees 6,000 8,599 7,717
Mailing/Notice Subscription 3,000 2,200 3,000

1,435,090 1,514,229 1,367,731

OTHER INCOME
Net investment earnings 22,000 44,185 38,146
Professional development 5,000 19,565 13,353
Lock and leave program 10,000 11,907 10,114
Rental income 12,000 11,500 12,000
Sale of supplies 3,000 2,012 3,202
Satellite pharmacies 735 446 425
PRISM - 19,293 47,420
M3P - 57,759 60,645

52,735 166,667 185,305

TOTAL REVENUE 1,487,825 1,680,896 1,553,036

EXPENSES
PRISM - 19,293 47,420
M3P - 57,759 60,645
Operations  (Page 25) 401,150 455,513 443,093
Professional development (Page 26) 25,000 43,565 22,751
Administration (Page 26) 1,055,300 970,573 977,970

1,481,450 1,546,703 1,551,879

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES
FROM OPERATIONS 6,375 134,193 1,157

OTHER INCOME  
Gain on disposal of assets - - 357,997
Earnings of DIA Management Group Ltd. (Note 9) - (6,835) (10,305)
Unrealized gain on marketable securities - 14,519 50,920

- 7,684 398,612

OPERATING SURPLUS $ 6,375 $ 141,877 $ 399,769
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Invested in Internally 
Capital Assets Unrestricted Restricted 2010 2009

 

NET ASSETS -
BEGINNING OF
YEAR $ 128,922 $ 1,262,821 $ 50,000 $ 1,441,743 $ 1,041,974

 
Operating surplus (27,358) 169,235 - 141,877 399,769

 
Investment in capital

assets 2,978 (2,978) - - -

NET ASSETS - END OF
YEAR $ 104,542 $ 1,429,078 $ 50,000 $ 1,583,620 $ 1,441,743

 

16



MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2010

2010 2009

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 Cash receipts from members $ 1,792,404 $ 1,606,176
 Cash paid to suppliers and employees (1,586,382) (1,537,978)
 Interest received 33,473 22,900

 Cash flow from operating activities 239,495 91,098

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Purchase of capital assets (2,978) (225,411)
 Proceeds on disposal of capital assets - 396,647
 Change in marketable securities (384,420) (476,182)

 Cash flow used by investing activities (387,398) (304,946)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Advances to related parties - (4,623)
 Advances from members 50,000 -

 Cash flow from (used by) financing activities 50,000 (4,623)

DECREASE IN CASH FLOW (97,903) (218,471)

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 955,024 1,173,495

CASH - END OF YEAR $ 857,121 $ 955,024
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2010

1. DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS    

The Association was formed under an act of the legislature of the Province of Manitoba as a body corporate to
undertake regulatory activities for the pharmacy profession.  It administers the Pharmaceutical Act (Bill 51)
and is responsible for the licensing, discipline and continuing education of pharmacists and for establishing
practice standards. The Association ensures the promotion, preservation and protection of the health and safety
of our communities. As a non-profit organization, the Association is exempt from income tax on its earnings
under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles. Because a precise determination of many assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the
preparation of financial statements for a period necessarily involves the use of estimates which have been
made using careful judgement. The financial statements have, in management's opinion, been properly
prepared within the reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework of the significant accounting
policies summarized below:

Financial instruments policy   

The association has elected to apply Section 3861, Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation in place
of Sections 3862 and 3863.  

The association classifies its financial instruments into one of the following categories based on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired or liability incurred.  The association's accounting policy for each category is
as follows:

Assets held-for-trading

Financial instruments classified as assets held-for-trading are reported at fair value at each balance sheet date,
and any change in fair value is recognized in excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses in the period during
which the change occurs.  Transaction costs are expensed when incurred.  

In these financial statements, cash and marketable securities has been classified as held-for-trading.

Available-for-sale investments

Financial instruments classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair value at each balance sheet date, and
any change in fair value is recognized in net assets in the period in which the change occurs.  All transactions
related to marketable securities are recorded on a settlement date basis.  

In these financial statements, no items has been classified as available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity investments

Financial instruments classified as held-to-maturity are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the association's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity.  These assets are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently carried at amortized cost, using the
effective interest rate method.  Transaction costs are included in the amount initially recognized.

In these financial statements, no items have been classified as held-to-maturity. 

(continues)
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans and receivables and other financial liabilities

Financial instruments classified as loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.  Transaction costs are expensed when incurred.

In these financial statements, accounts receivable have been classified as loans and receivables.  Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities have been classified as other financial liabilities.

Capital management 

The Association’s objectives when managing capital are to continue as a going concern to protect its ability to
meet its on-going liabilities, and to maximize returns for members over the long term. Protecting the ability to
pay current and future liabilities includes maintaining capital above minimum regulatory levels, current
financial strength rating requirements and internally determined capital guidelines based on risk management
policies.  

Marketable securities 

Marketable securities are classified as held-for-trading and are recorded at fair value.  Fair values are
determined using quoted market prices.

Capital assets       

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. The capital assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives
at the following rates using the straight-line method.

 
Office equipment 10 years
Computer hardware 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Renovations and leasehold

improvements
5 years

The Association regularly reviews its capital assets to eliminate obsolete items. 

Investment in DIA Management Group Inc. 

The Association purchased 100% of the outstanding shares of DIA Management Group Inc. on June 30, 2008.
The investment is being recorded using the equity method where the shares of income or losses are recorded as
part of the cost of the investment.

(continues)
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition 

These financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis using the deferred contribution and restricted fund
methods of accounting.

The Operating Fund uses the deferred contribution method of accounting. Contributions are recognized as
revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured. 

Revenues from fees are recognized for the period in which they relate to and when collection is reasonably
assured.

Fines, costs and interest are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received
can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

The Building and Library Fund use the restricted fund method of accounting. Contributions are recognized as
revenue in the year they are received.

Funds 

The Building Fund was set up for the purpose of future major renovations or re-location. As re-location
occurred in 2009 future funds received will be allocated to future improvement. 

The Library Fund was set up to record purchases for the library. A $100 allocation is made whenever a
member passes away.

Future changes in significant accounting policies

The following accounting standards have been issued by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(CICA) but are not yet effective for the Association. The Association is currently evaluating the effect of
adopting these standards.

The Accounting Standards Board will be implementing Part III of the CICA Handbook Accounting Standards
for Not-for-Profit Organizations effective January 1, 2012. The Association will be assessing the impact of the
new standards on its financial statements over the next year. Early adoption is permitted for the new standards.
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2010

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS   

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations.  The Association is
exposed to credit risk from members.  The Association has minimized concentration for credit risk because the
members are required to pay the dues in order to continue the membership.

Fair Value

The Association's carrying value of cash and cash, marketable securities, accounts receivable, accrued interest
receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates its fair value due to the immediate or
short term maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of amounts due from DIA Management Group Ltd. is less than carrying value because the
amounts are non-interest bearing. However, because the amounts due from DIA Management Group Ltd. have
no fixed repayment terms, the fair value and the exposure to related risk cannot be determined with any degree
of certainty, and the amounts are therefore reported at their carrying value.

Interest Rate

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in
the interest rates.  In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the Association manages
exposure through its normal operating and financing activities.  The Association is exposed to interest rate risk
primarily through its marketable securities.

4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES         

Marketable securities have been adjusted to fair value for 2010 year-end as disclosed below:

2010 2009
Market Cost Market Cost

Fixed income $ 1,134,166 $ 1,117,974 $ 633,388 $ 623,126
Preferred shares 13,885 14,734 12,957 14,734
Common shares 111,331 102,490 108,683 106,254
Mutual funds - - 25,675 24,901

$ 1,259,382 $ 1,235,198 $ 780,703 $ 769,015

The marketable securities are on account with RBC Dominion Securities and are invested in GICs, bonds,
trusts, mutual funds and common shares.  Interest rates on fixed income ranges from 2.75% to 10% and mature
between December, 2011 and December, 2108.

5. DUE FROM DIA MANAGEMENT GROUP INC.   

The amounts due from DIA Management Group Inc. arose from cash advances. The advances bear no interest
and have no repayment terms.
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2010

6. CAPITAL ASSETS           
2010 2009

Cost Accumulated Cost Accumulated
amortization amortization

Office equipment $ 41,102 $ 15,946 $ 41,102 $ 13,099
Computer hardware 16,445 13,597 13,467 11,009
Furniture and fixtures 1,926 770 1,926 385
Renovations and leasehold

improvements 107,689 32,307 107,689 10,769

$ 167,162 $ 62,620 $ 164,184 $ 35,262

Net book value $ 104,542 $ 128,922

7. INTERNALLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS    

Certain net assets of the Association have been internally restricted for legal defence purposes.

8. DEFERRED INCOME        

2010 2009

Fees $ 1,473,760 $ 1,395,776
PRISM program 3,125 60,126
MPPP 222,182 67,566
District 5 NABP Study Grant 1,014 1,014

Net contributions deferred $ 1,700,081 $ 1,524,482

PRISM program is composed of the following cumulative to date amounts:

2010 2009

Contributions received $ 585,218 $ 621,001
Transfer from CRIMP 3,631 3,631
Transfer from Patient Care Fund 724 724

      Subtotal 589,573 625,356

Expenses:
Director's salary and benefits 225,189 220,454
Research assistant 245,145 238,338
Education material 45 45
Rent and furniture 46,099 40,897
Computer hardware and software 3,874 3,874
Contract pharmacists 9,121 9,121
Travel 26,209 25,158

(continues)
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2010

8. DEFERRED INCOME (continued)
Office supplies 19,939 19,233
Audit 2,273 -
Telephone 8,554 8,110

586,448 565,230

Net contributions deferred $ 3,125 $ 60,126

Manitoba Prescribing Practices Program (M3P) is composed of the following cumulative to date amounts:

Contributions received $ 507,825 $ 295,450
Expenses:

Administrative staff 103,390 83,919
Distribution 22,237 17,422
Equipment use 1,380 1,380
Group Insurance 9,812 7,482
Occupancy 22,200 14,700
Prescription forms 120,614 96,971
Professional and consulting 6,010 6,010

285,643 227,884

Net contributions deferred $ 222,182 $ 67,566

CRIMP program is composed of the following cumulative to date amounts:

Contributions received $ - $ 23,915
Expenses:

Advertising - 1,776
Bank charges - 15
Enrolment - 4,019
Printing and office - 3,543
Salary - 8,371
Workshop - 2,560

- 20,284

Transfer to PRISM - (3,631)

Net contributions deferred $ - $ -

District 5 NABP Study Grant program is composed of the following cumulative to date amounts:

Contributions received $ 3,587 $ 3,587
Expenses:

Survey 338 338
Administrative staff 735 735
Training 1,500 1,500

(continues)
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2010

8. DEFERRED INCOME (continued)
2,573 2,573

$ 1,014 $ 1,014

9. INVESTMENT IN DIA MANAGEMENT GROUP LTD.    

The Association controls DIA Management Group Ltd. DIA Management Group Ltd. was incorporated under
the Corporations Act of Manitoba on March 26, 1991 with its primary business activities including property
management. DIA Management Group Ltd. has not been consolidated in this organization's financial
statements. The Association is accounting for its investment in DIA Management Group Ltd. using the equity
method where the shares of income or losses are recorded as part of the cost of the investment. Financial
statements of DIA Management Group Ltd. are available on request. 

Financial summaries of this unconsolidated entity as at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 and for the
periods then ended are as follows:

DIA MANAGEMENT GROUP LTD.
December 31 December  31

2010 2009
Financial Position

Total assets $ 307,625 $ 314,459
Total liabilities 211,619 211,618
Total net assets $ 96,006 $ 102,841

Results of Operations
Total revenues $ 535 $ 9,733
Total expenses, including income taxes 7,370 20,038
Excess of revenue over expenses $ (6,835) $ (10,305)

Cash Flows
Cash from operating activities $ 2,670 $ (5,372)
Cash from investing activities (7,053) -
Cash from financing activities - 4,623
Increase (decrease) in cash flows $ (4,383) $ (749)
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Schedule of Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budget
(Unaudited)

2010 2010 2009

OPERATIONS
Annual meeting $ 10,000 $ 13,266 $ 8,599
Assistant registrar's 3,000 1,775 912
Complaints committee 4,000 5,660 5,202
Contributions - Library Fund - 600 400
Contributions - sundry 2,500 2,320 3,132
Council meetings 47,000 61,031 52,854
Deputy registrar's  2,000 451 612
Discipline - legal 38,000 80,412 88,285
Discipline committee 10,000 6,576 5,246
District meetings 2,500 220 -
Executive meetings 10,000 12,603 8,126
Faculty of Pharmacy levy 126,800 134,000 131,400
Field operations 8,000 7,106 8,802
General and special meetings 5,000 620 -
Grads' breakfast 4,000 4,000 4,000
Medals and awards 13,000 10,898 14,907
NAPRA delegates 8,000 8,432 7,082
NAPRA levy 60,000 60,000 60,000
Other conference and travel 20,000 25,627 18,959
Other meetings 15,000 8,314 11,727
President's honorarium 6,600 6,600 6,600
Registrar's  3,250 2,615 3,296
Young leaders awards 2,500 2,387 2,952

$ 401,150 $ 455,513 $ 443,093
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MANITOBA PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

Schedule of Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budget
(Unaudited)

2010 2010 2009

ADMINISTRATION
Accounting and audit $ 8,000 $ 8,800 $ 9,033
Bank and credit card charges 13,000 35,307 30,720
Building - heat 3,500 2,517 3,644
Building - insurance 4,000 3,223 1,448
Building - light and water 6,000 5,675 6,306
Building - maintenance and repairs 12,000 22,395 23,670
Building - taxes 21,000 19,171 16,002
CPP  15,000 20,614 18,155
Computer and I/T 20,000 18,126 14,835
Delivery 2,500 1,580 1,952
Depreciation - computer hardware 7,500 2,589 4,003
Depreciation - office equipment 5,000 3,232 3,389
Depreciation - photocopier 10,000 - -
Depreciation- renovations and leasehold

improvement 10,000 21,538 10,769
Dues and subscriptions 4,500 3,824 3,562
EI  11,000 11,653 11,824
Equipment maintenance 9,000 10,058 10,960
External affairs 10,000 11,257 1,455
Human resource management 5,000 6,132 -
Insurance - group and liability 46,000 48,868 44,951
Legal fees 70,000 55,077 56,946
Pension plan 40,000 40,873 36,679
Postage 25,000 19,606 27,915
Printing and supplies 25,000 15,925 20,202
Salaries 652,800 565,130 599,257
Staff development 5,000 693 3,411
Sundry 3,500 5,024 3,713
Telephone 11,000 11,686 13,169

$ 1,055,300 $ 970,573 $ 977,970

2010
Professional Development Program  $ 25,000 $ 43,565 $ 22,751
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REGISTRAR’S REPORT  

- Ronald Guse 

 

This report contains the noted activities of MPhA staff for 2010. 

 

Regulations to the December 2006 The Pharmaceutical Act  

 

Following the members vote to defeat of the December 2007 Draft Regulations Policy Document, Council embarked 

upon a process to understand the reasons for the defeat of the proposed regulations and changes needed for the 

members to approve the next version of the regulations.   

 

During 2010, Council continued the process that was initiated by PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PwC) and the original PwC 

Steering Committee was changed and morphed into a working group.  Through the efforts of the working group, the 

assistance and direction from key Manitoba Health staff and the Assistant Deputy Minister of Health, Council was able 

to draft regulations that would meet the needs of the members and facilitate a successful vote on the October 2010 

Regulations Policy Document.  On November 9th, 2010, the members approved the 2010 version.  It is important to 

note the 2010 document was based on, approximately, 90% of the previous version, but contained key changes that met 

with the approval of the members. 

 

The membership approved regulations were forwarded to the Minister of Health on November 17th, 2010.  The 

government will review and begin drafting the regulations in the proper format and consistent with other provincial 

regulations.  MPhA will provide the necessary support and guidance to enable this process to move as quickly and 

efficiently as possible.  However, there is considerable amount of work that is needed to update the Bylaws and Code 

of Ethics and create practice directions based upon the regulations and Standards of Practice.    

 

Once these changes are implemented, Manitoba will be on its way to regaining its place at the forefront of the enhanced 

practice roles for pharmacists.   

 

Amendments to the current Pharmaceutical Act 

 

The current Pharmaceutical Act was amended in June 2010 by the Manitoba Legislature.  Amendments included the 

addition of definitions for ―midwife‖ and ―registered nurse‖ and a change to the definition of ―prescription‖ to include 

the term ―registered nurse‖.  MPhA was made aware of these changes in November 2010.   

 

These changes were reported and explained to pharmacists in December 2010 newsletter.  Prescriptions issued by 

registered nurses with prescribing authority in other provinces can now be filled in Manitoba.  The prescriber is noted 

as ―out of province prescriber‖ in the DPIN.  Previous to this change, pharmacists could only fill prescriptions written 

by Manitoba licensed RNEP’s or Nurse Practitioners.   

 

UCanadian Council for Accreditation of Pharmacy Programs U ( UCCAPP) Site Visit 

 

On Tuesday November 30th, 2010, an evaluation team from the CCAPP visited the Herzing College-Winnipeg 

Campus to evaluate and consider their Pharmacy Technician Program for provisional status under CCAPP’s 

Accreditation standards. MPhA participated as an observer.   

 

This event is part of the national activity of CCAPP to review and evaluate technician education programs against the 

NAPRA approved competencies.  For further information, please refer to the NAPRA and CCAPP websites. 

 

Regulated Health Professions Act 

 
As reported last year, the Legislature passed The Regulated Health Professions Act (RHPA).  The government is 

preparing to pass regulations for Medicine, Nursing and Speech and Hearing in order to proclaim the RHPA in 2011.   

 

Most of the regulations approved by the members for the December 2006 Pharmaceutical Act will be applicable for the 

RHPA.  However, additional work will need to be done and the members will need to approve those regulations in 

order to come under the RHPA.   

 

In 2010, Council approved the recommendations from the Ad Hoc Committee on Reserved Act (under the RHPA) and 

these recommendations were recently forwarded to the Legislative Unit of Manitoba Health. 
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―Electronic‖ Prescriptions  

 

Over 2009 and 2010, the MPhA has been working to develop a simpler approach to ―electronic‖ prescriptions (to mean 

prescriptions that are not provided in the traditional written or verbal manner).  With some of the software programs 

being used in medical clinics, it is difficult to assess the validity of prescriptions coming into the pharmacy’s fax 

machine as being in compliance with the existing joint statement.   

 

Several meetings occurred involving the College of Physicians and Surgeons and Manitoba Health to review the 

existing document and develop an updated joint statement.  Manitoba Health followed-up with Health Canada and 

advising of this initiative and confirming it is consistent with the direction provided by Health Canada on this the issue 

of electronic prescriptions.  The ―electronic prescription‖ document, along with the updated version of the ―Facsimile 

Prescription Joint Statement‖, was ready to be distributed to all pharmacists in early 2011.  However, a further delay 

was unavoidable. 

  

International Prescription Service (IPS) Pharmacy and Internet Drug Sales 

 

As this report is being prepared, the lawsuit against the Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association as filed by current and 

former holders of IPS Pharmacies licences remains active.  The lawsuit claims the MPhA has no authority to require an 

IPS component of a pharmacy licence and, if it can be shown the authority does exist, then the lawsuit alleges that 

MPhA has charged an unreasonable amount for the IPS component. During 2010, much time and legal costs were spent 

in preparing a particulars document in response to the affidavit information filed by the Manitoba International 

Pharmacists Association President, Mr. Troy Harwood-Jones. 

 

MPhA continues to have challenges in investigation and gathering evidence for presentation at Complaints and 

Discipline Panels into the international sale of prescription drugs from Manitoba. The disclaimer that is being posted at 

the websites does let the consumer know of the limitation of the MPhA and is helpful in this regard. 

 

In 2010, MPhA was approached by the Better Business Bureau due to concerns and complaints received from 

consumers purchasing, or being asked to purchase, drugs through self proclaimed ―pharmacies‖ in Manitoba.  Some of 

the businesses were affiliated with pharmacies licensed by the MPhA.  However, many are not but claim to be licensed 

in Manitoba. As a result, a working group was set up involving Health Canada, Consumers Bureau and the RCMPolice.  

MPhA, and other groups, act as a resource for the working group.  A analysis report from the group is expected during 

the first quarter of 2011. 

 

Manitoba Prescribing Practices Program (M3P) 

 
Early in 2010, the government renewed the Service Purchase Agreement for MPhA to continue to administer Manitoba 

Prescribing Practices Program.  Part of the renewed Agreement was the revamping of the annual budget which includes 

the ability to do some research.  All research activity must be approved by Manitoba Health/Assistant Deputy Minister 

(ADM).  We will be making application to the ADM to reconsider looking at the role of the M3P form, provincial 

comparisons, future role, general M3P drug utilization and intervention tools of the pharmacist.   

 

During 2010, 7157 M3P prescriptions pads were distributed in response to 1722 physicians’, 7 dentists’ and 12 

veterinarians’ requests. This is a 3% increase over 2009.  The pads were ordered mostly through facsimile requests and 

secondarily through telephone and e-mail transmission.   Also, 36 ―emergency pads‖ were issued by the MPhA to 

prescribers who failed to reorder their forms in a timely manner.  Further information can be seen in the MPhA 

financial statement in the annual report booklet.    

 

Strategic Planning Session 

 
Under the guidance of President Bugden, the new Council went through a thorough strategic planning session in 

October 2010, which hasn’t occurred since 2006.  One of the concerns identified in the PriceWaterhouseCoopers 

(PwC) governance assessment of the MPhA was a need to implement an ongoing strategic planning session process.  

During the session in late 2010, the PwC document was incorporated into the discussion and overall strategic plan.    

 

PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PwC) Governance Assessment 

 

Works has continued through 2010 to implement the many recommendations contained in his report.  This ―work in 

progress‖ will continue in 2011 and has become the basis for many of the governance changes implemented at the 

MPhA. 
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Governance Committee 

 

The newly formed Governance Committee began meeting in late 2010.  The formation of this committee was 

recommended in the PwC Report after their review of the MPhA.  At the first meeting of the Committee, Vice 

President John Cormier was elected Chair. 

 

In addition to the tasks described in the PwC report, the Committee will be looking at:   

 Planning Capacity of  Council 

 Renewal Capacity of Council 

 Policy Development:  process and content 

 Terms of Council members 

 Performance review done at the end of each Council meeting 

 Succession for the President 

 Role clarification of Council and Committees 

 

Manitoba Institute for Patent Safety (MIPS)  

 

The MPhA is a premier/founding member of MIPS and agreed to have the Registrar participate on the initial Board, as 

appointed by the Minister of Health.  As reported last year, I was re-elected to the MIPS Board and have been re-

appointed the Vice Chair of the Board and Chair of the Finance Committee for a second term.   

 

MIPS continues to develop patient safety simulation scenarios focused on communication, teamwork and 

interprofessional collaboration.  Deputy Registrar Susan Lessard-Friesen is the Chair of the project.  This Chair 

position reflects very well on Susan and the MPhA and insures, in my mind, the quality and thoroughness of the 

project. 

 

MIPS developed several commercial length videos to highlight the public awareness to patient safety, subtitled ―Learn 

to be Safe‖.  The videos can be viewed at the MIPS website at www.mbips.ca and www.safetoask.ca 

  

MPhA continues to be a key participant and supporter of MIPS. 

 

Drug Diversion events for Oxycontin: Problematic Substance Use Advisory Committee 

 

During the summer of 2010, community pharmacies became the target of armed robberies in the demand for 

―oxycontin‖.  The Minister of Healthy Living called for an emergency meeting of the stakeholders to examine this 

recent and risky development. The ―Pharmacy Security Working Group‖ was developed under the direction of the 

Minister.  Pharmacy managers were kept informed through information bulletins from the MPhA describing the 

number and type of robberies occurring.   Through the work of MPhA and the Manitoba Society of Pharmacists, 

pharmacies were provided with helpful tools to prevent armed robberies.  The MPhA hosted a professional 

development event for pharmacists to help them understand the street level of narcotic use and abuse and to hear 

directly from police officers on how to enhance the security of their community pharmacy.  However it was the efforts 

of the Winnipeg Police Service that ultimately brought an end to the summer ―rash‖ of robberies.   

 

Alarmingly in December 2010, the robberies started again and this time they were including the rural areas surrounding 

in Winnipeg.  Once again pharmacy staff and patients were being placed at risk by the robberies.   Pharmacists did a 

great job in keeping their staff and patients safe when a robbery was in progress and became expert witnesses assisting 

the police in their investigation.  The Winnipeg Police Service made a key arrest in January 2011 to, once again, put an 

end to this latest crime spree.   

 

The working group supports the work of the ―Problematic Substance Use Advisory Committee‖.  The first meeting of 

the Advisory Committee occurred in October 2010.  MPhA was not invited to that meeting but is now a member of the 

Committee.  The Committee is co-chaired by the Deputy Minister of Healthy Living, Youth and Seniors and the 

Assistant Deputy Minister of Province Programs and Services, Manitoba Health.  The meetings will continue through 

2011 with the objectives as follows: 

 To provide policy and program advice to government on issues related to problematic substance use 

(prescription and non prescription) 

 To provide advice on appropriate effective responses to issues 

 To identify and provide proactive advice regarding emerging issues 

 Serve as a cross departmental / cross jurisdictional vehicle for sharing information/issues/priorities/trends and 

identifying strategic opportunities for effective action 

 

http://www.mbips.ca/
http://www.safetoask.ca/
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Contribution to Committee Work and Teaching at the Faculty of Pharmacy, University of Manitoba 

 

Over the years the MPhA has enjoyed and benefited from a close partnership with the Faculty of Pharmacy.   

 

MPhA staff regularly participates and contributes to the course content and teaching responsibilities for the pharmacy 

practice jurisprudence section of the Pharmacy Skills Laboratory, offered in second year of the undergraduate program, 

and in the fourth year course, Current Topics.  The objective of Current Topics is to build awareness and understanding 

of contemporary issues related to the profession and practice of pharmacy.  

 

MPhA office also serves as a site for the 7 week fourth year elective program.    

 

Staff changes at the MPhA 

 
For the first time since 1999, MPhA has Deputy Registrar on staff.  Ms. Susan Lessard-Friesen is no stranger to MPhA and 

has worked at the MPhA since 1995 in a part-time position in the area of Professional Development and became a full time 

employee as an Assistant Registrar in 1999.  Susan started the position and title of Deputy Registrar on April 6th, 2010 and is 

responsible for Quality Assurance in the office.  She has the Assistant Registrar for Field Operations and the Assistant 

Registrar for Professional Development reporting to her.  Susan is also responsible for the new data management system 

being implemented in the office, which includes the new website just recently released.   

 

Ms. Kim McIntosh was hired in May 2010 as Assistant Registrar in charge of Professional Development.  Kim ―hit the 

ground running‖ and has done a great job in taking over the PD workload from Susan.  Kim is also our in-house 

resource and expert on pharmacy technician development, competencies and standards of practice. 

 

In November 2010, we hired a new Executive Assistant to the Registrar.  Ms. Mala Persaud was joined the office with 

strong credentials to take on this role, but had little or no background in pharmacy.  Notwithstanding, Mala has adapted 

quickly to the new job and challenges therein. 

 

All pharmacists should take the opportunity to welcome the new staff and be reacquainted with the ―old‖.   

Welcome to the Profession Ceremony 

 

On Saturday June 5th, 2010, MPhA co-hosted the Welcome to the Profession Ceremony with the Faculty of Pharmacy.  

This ceremony combined the Mortar and Pestle Ceremony, previously hosted by the Faculty of Pharmacy, and the 

longstanding Grads Breakfast, previously hosted by the MPhA.  I performed duties as the Master of Ceremonies and 

the President Bugden gave an address on behalf of the MPhA and was also invited by the graduating class to be the 

feature speaker. 

 

This is a great event and really recognizes and supports the new graduates as they take their giant step into the 

profession.  

 

Update on 200 Taché Avenue 

 

If anyone has not had the chance to see the new home of the Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association, they should take 

the opportunity during 2011.  We had our official opening in February of last year.  The building has given us a few 

surprises in the first year, but this is all expected with new property.  However, this building will continue to serve as 

the home of the MPhA for many years to come.  It is an impressive building and reflects well upon the profession.   

 

As reported last year, funding and the progress of the renovations for the lower level has been more of a challenge.  As 

time permits in 2011, we hope to get some progress on the renovations and funding of the lower level.   

 

Advertising Principle #8:  Loyalty Points for Prescription Transfers 

 

Pharmacists were reminded on a couple of occasions during 2010 that adverting a gift or gratuity to entice patients to 

transfer their prescriptions to a particular pharmacy is not allowed under the Advertising Principles in place in 

Manitoba.  When breached, it has been brought to the attention of the offenders.  Apologies and a promise to 

discontinue to the promotion and abide by the principles was accepted in lieu of any formal action. 
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Manitoba E-Health:  Electronic Health Record 

 

MPhA has been asked to attend and participate in an ―Electronic Health Record Business Advisory Committee‖ as 

convened by Manitoba e-Health.  The meetings have continued throughout 2010.  This program has moved quickly 

over the year and implemented EHR program test sites in several primary care and hospital locations throughout the 

province in December 2010.  There have also been public forums and a media campaign to raise the awareness in the 

general public.  

 

One of the critical roles of the licensing bodies is to confirm the licensing status of the health care providers.  As an 

individual’s status changes, the database of providers needs to be updated immediately.  A draft agreement with the 

licensing bodies for information exchange is being developed.  Further discussion is needed regarding the policy for 

masking of patient information within the system and the process needed to unmask the information during times of 

emergency or upon authorization provided by the patient for a particular health care provider.  

 

MPhA has kept pharmacists informed about EHR, which is now identified as ―e-Chart‖, through newsletter and 

informative documents.  The ―e-Chart‖ will include information on laboratory results, demographic information from 

the Manitoba Client Registry, DPIN information and immunization recorded in the Manitoba Immunization Monitoring 

System.   

 

Presidential Advisory Committee to Appoint a Dean, Faculty of Pharmacy 

 

The MPhA received a request that the Registrar participate on the Presidential Advisory Committee to appoint a Dean 

for the Faculty of Pharmacy.  Council granted the request.  The meetings began in late 2010 and will culminate in a 

recommendation to the President of the University.  The goal is to have the new Dean appointed and in place by July 1, 

2011.  

 

In early 2011, there were public presentations of three Dean Candidates.  Those that attended the presentations will 

realize the difficulty the Committee had in making one recommendation from these exceptional candidates.  

 

Quality Assurance Review:  Entry to Practice Licensing 

 

MPhA conducted a review of the licensing and verification of documents process for internationally trained 

pharmacists recently added to the pharmacists’ register and issued a practicing licence.  The Assistant Registrar from 

the Saskatchewan College of Pharmacists led a review team and made recommendations to the Registrar, Board of 

Examiners and Council. As a result of the internal and external review, changes were made in the processes and 

additional verification and checking was added to the system.  Information was also shared with the other provincial 

pharmacy licensing bodies and the Pharmacy Examining Board of Canada.   

 

Council Members 

 

The Minister of Health recently appointed Ms. Donna Forbes to the MPhA Council to replace Mr. Bill Regehr.  Ms. Forbes 

will be attending her first general Council meeting in April and we look forward to her participation.   

 

At the end of 2010, we received a letter of resignation from public representative Ms. Sarah Zaharia.  At the December and 

February Council meetings, we did not have a public representative the meeting.  We hope to have a replacement for Ms. 

Zaharia appointed early in 2011 and have the full complement of Council members for the April meeting. 

 

In 2010, we also received notification that Dr. David Collins resigned as Dean of the Faculty of Pharmacy.  David was Dean 

for 11 years, during which he was also a Council member.  David will be missed but we wished him well in his new 

position as Vice Provost with the University of Manitoba.  We look forward to working with the newly appointed Dean 

in 2011. 

 

In closing, 

Clearly one of the events that will be a hallmark of the 2010-2012 Council, under the direction of President Bugden, is 

the members passing the 2010 Regulations Policy Document.   This is an important step to get the profession back on 

track to becoming an important part of the health care provided to Manitobans.  Notwithstanding the event, all the work 

leading up to the event cannot be forgotten.  As much as this Council played an important role, the volume of work and 

commitment of the MPhA staff should not be forgotten or discounted in any way.  All MPhA staff went above and 

beyond the normal work commitment to support the development and drafting of the document.   

 

MPhA office had some challenges over the last year.  We lost Assistant Registrar Ross Forsyth for an extended time 

period in 2010 through a short-term disability.  Thankfully, we were able to contract with a Past President of the 
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MPhA, Mr. Rem Weiss, to perform some of the field operations that needed to be done in Ross’s absence.  Ross has 

rejoined our team in early 2011 and has quickly resumed his role in Field Operations, but Rem will continue for a 

period of time in 2011 to help us with the backlog of work. 

 

As mentioned earlier in the report, Ms. Kim McIntosh and Ms. Mala Persaud have joined and strengthened our MPhA 

team.  They are very early in their career with MPhA, but have joined a staff bringing a lot of valuable experience and 

attributes.   

 

It is important to note that Administrative Assistant Ms. Bev Robinson will celebrate her 25th year with the MPhA.  

Bev and I have worked together since she joined the office and you’ll not find a more capable and committed person to 

have as a colleague.  Communications Coordinator and Quality Assurance Secretary Kathy Cobb and Administrative 

Secretary Pamela Gordon continue to do great work for the MPhA, the pharmacists and the public of Manitoba.  We 

have contracted with a consultant to work with Kathy and support her role as the Communications Coordinator.  

 

MPhA is very fortunate to have Susan Lessard-Friesen as the Deputy Registrar.  Susan has already had a positive 

impact and influence on the organization through her general responsibilities as the Deputy Registrar and specifically 

her knowledge and role in Quality Assurance.  This will relieve some of the workload on the Registrar and provide 

greater depth to the organization. 

 

MPhA is also very well served by its legal counsel, Mr. David Marr.  His long standing service, knowledge of the 

MPhA and clear focus on the mandate is a very valuable and necessary resource to Council and staff.    

 

This year has posed exceptional challenges for me personally but provided a strong indication and assurance that 

MPhA and I can rise to the challenges we are given.  I have appreciated the support that I receive from Council as a 

group and certain individual councilors, present and past.  Their knowledgeable opinions and guidance are greatly 

appreciated and a valuable asset to me.  President Bugden has been excellent.  He also ―hit the ground running‖ and 

succeeded in getting a regulations document for the members’ consideration and approval in November of 2010.  His 

knowledge and perspective of the issues facing the MPhA and support for me in my, at times difficult, job is greatly 

appreciated. 

 

And finally, much appreciation goes to the pharmacists of Manitoba.  Pharmacists meet the daily challenges of patient 

care and safety through their competent practice.  This important work can be, at times, overlooked and undervalued by 

the public.  However, it is the good work of the Manitoba pharmacists that raises the profile and trust of the 

pharmacists in the province.  I speak and e-mail with many pharmacists throughout the year and appreciate their 

candour but also the mutual respect and understanding. 

  

Respectfully submitted, 

Ronald Guse, Registrar 

 

 

REGISTRAR'S REPORT  APPENDIX I 
 

1.1 STUDENT REGISTRATIONS 

 

306 Applications were received to enter first-year pharmacy for the 2010 – 2011 sessions.  The following students were 

accepted: 

 

ADIONG, John LI, Amanda 

AHOFF, Edward MACDOUGALL, Amelia 

ALBISSER, Morgan MARCINKOW, Alia 

BARNES, Alexander MARSCHALL, Heidi 

BAWDON, Kaeleigh MARTENS, Corina 

BOILEAU, Joelle MARYK, Samantha 

BOURNS, Heather MOHAMMED, Amir 

BRITTON, Kristjana MUC, Adriana 

BURCZYNSKI, Steven NAFEZ, Solmaz 

CAMPBELL, Tyler NEMEZ, Kenzie 

CHUTE, Louis NGO, Jeffrey 

DEMINGS, Kate NGUYEN, Juliana 

DORNEZ, Joël PANDHER, Varinder 
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EWASIUK, Ashley PANKEWYCZ, Taisa 

GIANG, William PETERSON, Kathryn 

HEINRICH, Adam PRASHAR, Salil 

HENRY, Linsey SCOTT, Megan 

HO, Joseph SIDHU, Navdeep 

HOGUE, Liam SMITH, Chelsea 

HRYCIW, Michelle SMITH, Samantha 

JAMES, Jillian STOCKMANN, Peter 

JAMIESON, Krista SYMINGTON, Derrin 

JAWORSKI, Dorota TABING, Ryan 

KIM, Daehong TATE, Sarah 

KUSIAK, Ryan TOMIAK, Matthew 

LAGIMODIERE, Lisa TREMBATH, Roxena 

LEE, Nicole WONG, Sue 

LEI, Alexander  

 

2. REGISTRATION OF GRADUATES FROM THE FACULTY OF PHARMACY  2010 

 

BAERT, Ashley July 12, 2010 LANGEDOCK, Colin September 3, 2010 

BARLAS, Jawad August 3, 2010 LAWRANCE, Carolyn July 12, 2010 

BOSC, Jacinte July 12, 2010 LING, Justin July 14, 2010 

BRELAND, Lance July 12, 2010 McLEAN, Guylene July 12, 2010 

BURBELLA, Jennifer July 29, 2010 MEDEIROS, Paul July 12, 2010 

CALIC, Divna July 12, 2010 NGUYEN, Janice July 19, 2010 

CAOUETTE, Kimberley August 26, 2010 POUTEAU, Natalie July 12, 2010 

CATRYSSE, Dayna July 19, 2010 PUTZ, Scott July 12, 2010 

CHEUNG, Seakie July 12, 2010 SCHICK, Stephanie September 3, 2010 

COOK, Karissa July 12, 2010 SHAH, Advit July 12, 2010 

COOPER, Alexandra August 9, 2010 SHAHIN, Amaal July 15, 2010 

DELA CRUZ, Romson July 13, 2010 TANG, Sylvia July 12, 2010 

FAMUYIDE, Omolayo February 19, 2010 TAYLOR, Katherine December 23, 2010 

FOTTI, Jennifer October 27, 2010 TING, Tommy July 12, 2010 

FUNK, Julie July 19, 2010 TRAN, Jason July 12, 2010 

GILL, Pawanjit August 17, 2010 WEBER, Zhanni August 30, 2010 

GILMOUR, Sheri July 12, 2010 XU, Yang July 12, 2010 

HUNT, Dustin August 13, 2010 YU, Victoria July 12, 2010 

HUYBER, Shannon July 23, 2010 ZERR, Steven July 12, 2010 

LACHANCE, Jacqueline July 14, 2010 

 

 

3. REGISTRATION OF GRADUATES FROM SCHOOLS OR COLLEGES OTHER THAN THE 

UNIVERSITY O FMANITOBA 

 

NAME COUNTRY/ 

PROVINCE 

REGIS.  

DATE 

 

ALI, Rizwan India November 15, 2010 

AL-SAWAIR, Haitham Jordan September 13, 2010 

BREIK, Noor Jordan December 13, 2010 

CHEUNG, Kelly Saskatchewan September 22, 2010 

CHOHAN, Harjot India November 4, 2010 

DEVONALD, Nicola Wales May 3, 2010 

DICK, Matthew Saskatchewan June 10, 2010 

FITZPATRICK, Kerri Saskatchewan July 23, 2010 

FROESE, Rebecca Saskatchewan August 10, 2010 

GAMI, Falgooni India August 6, 2010 

GAUTHIER, Vanessa Saskatchewan August 10, 2010 

GIBSON, Meghan Saskatchewan September 23, 2010 
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HALL, Alison Saskatchewan August 19, 2010 

HAMILTON, Kevin Saskatchewan July 21, 2010 

JACOBSON, Amanda Saskatchewan August 4, 2010 

MACALINO, Janice Philippines August 17, 2010 

MAJUMDAR, Pijush India September 17, 2010 

MARRIOTT, Amy Nova Scotia July 28, 2010 

MOGHADDASIN, Solam Iran July 9, 2010 

MOSHIRI, Kayvan Iran November 4, 2010 

NAIDOO, Preveshen South Africa May 19, 2010 

NAYAK, Jainit India July 26, 2010 

NAZIER, Ramy Egypt August 12, 2010 

PASMAN, Brian British Columbia August 17, 2010 

PATEL, Darshanaben India August 6, 2010 

PATEL, Hemant India November 8, 2010 

PATEL, Krupaben India December 8, 2010 

PATEL, Rahulkumar India November 4, 2010 

PATEL, Saurabhkumar India October 18, 2010 

PATEL, Varsheshkumar India November 22, 2010 

PAULEY, Heather Saskatchewan July 28, 2010 

PETERS, Lincoln Nova Scotia September 16, 2010 

POPESCU, Ionela Madalina Romania October 18, 2010 

RAHMAN, Md. Khalilur Pakistan October 28, 2010 

RAHMATI, Mahin Iran April 8, 2010 

SHARMA, Ashish India July 1, 2010 

STEFAN, Carmen Romania July 13, 2010 

TAKLA, Christina Saskatchewan July 13, 2010 

THOMPSON, Matthew Alberta July 20, 2010 

TYNES, Stephen Nova Scotia September 17, 2010 

VARGA, Lawrence British Columbia November 8, 2010 

ZUBAIR, Mohammed India October 12, 2010 

 

 

4. NEW PHARMACIES OPENED (to December 31, 2010) 

 

NAME CITY DATE OPENED 

 

GreenCrest Pembina 

Pharmacy 

Winnipeg January 26, 2010 

BioScript Pharmacy Ltd. Winnipeg  July 7, 2010 

CinDen Pharmacy #1 Winnipeg July 7, 2010 

The Medicine Shoppe 

Pharmacy #305 

Winnipeg August 18, 2010 

Santa Maria Pharmacy Winnipeg September 1, 2010 

Positive Health Pharmacy Inc. Winnipeg September 29, 2010 

St. Boniface Pharmacy Winnipeg November 16, 2010 

 

 

5. PHARMACIES CLOSED (to December 31, 2010) 

 

NAME CITY DATE CLOSED 

 

Rexall Pharma Plus #4870 Winnipeg January 8, 2010 

Four Rivers Pharmacy – Peguis Peguis July 9, 2010 

The Chemist’s Cupboard Shilo September 9, 2010 

Uptown Pharmacy Winnipeg November 30, 2010 
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6. CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP/ NAME CHANGE (to December 31, 2010) 

 

PHARMACY NAME Shoppers Drug Mart #551 January 31, 2010 

OWNERSHIP CHANGE TO 6008675 Manitoba Ltd.  

FROM K.B. Borisenko Pharmacy Ltd.  

 

 

  

PHARMACY NAME Shoppers Drug Mart #537 January 31, 2010 

OWNERSHIP CHANGE TO Britt Kural Health Solutions Inc.  

FROM Economy Drug Store Ltd.  

   

PHARMACY NAME Shoppers Drug Mart #2428 January 31, 2010 

OWNERSHIP CHANGE TO Simran Pharmacy Ltd.  

FROM Kerry Mitchell Pharmacy Ltd.  

   

PHARMACY NAME Shoppers Drug Mart #546 May 5, 2010 

OWNERSHIP CHANGE TO RSS Apothecary Ltd.  

FROM Patane Pharmacy Ltd.  

   

PHARMACY NAME TO Patient Advocate Pharmacy May 18, 2010 

FROM The Patient Advocate Pharmacy Inc.  

OWNERSHIP CHANGE TO Klippenstein Pharmacy Inc.  

FROM The Patient Advocate Pharmacy Inc.  

   

PHARMACY NAME Shoppers Drug Mart #2404 May 18, 2010 

OWNERSHIP CHANGE TO Banning Pharmacy Ltd.  

FROM C.K. Lai Pharmacy Ltd.  

   

PHARMACY NAME The Canadian-Pharmacy.com May 31, 2010 

LOCATION TO 114-1780 Wellington Avenue  

LOCATION FROM 84-1313 Border Street  

   

PHARMACY NAME Shoppers Drug Mart #546 June 20, 2010 

OWNERSHIP CHANGE TO RLO Apothecary Ltd.  

FROM RSS Apothecary Ltd.  

   

PHARMACY NAME Shoppers Drug Mart #2501 June 20, 2010 

OWNERSHIP CHANGE TO CAM Apothecary Inc.  

FROM K.M.M. Pharmacy Inc.  

 

 

7. LICENSING 

 

During the fiscal period terminated December 31, 2010, the following licenses and memberships were issued: 

 

1329  Patient Care 

      9  Non-Patient 

            180  Non Practicing 

                9  Honorary Life 

                7  Honorary Members 

              11  Mailing Notice 

 

Shop licences were issued to 368 pharmacies: 

 

- Community (Non IPS) 313 

- Community (IPS) 15 

- Hospital 40 

 368 
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8. SINCE OUR LAST ANNUAL MEETING A NUMBER OF OUR ESTEEMED AND VALUED 

MEMBERS HAVE PASSED ON, NAMELY: 

 

Theodore Sims March 10, 2010 Evan Stitt December 8, 2010 

Donald Watts April 2, 2010 Rosalie Goldstein December 25, 2010 

Allister Robert McRuer April 13, 2010 John Mainella January 13, 2011 

George Hudon May 18, 2010 Allen Macklin February 11, 2011 

Barbara Wells June 7, 2010 Matthew Olynyk February 12, 2011 

David Finkleman October 22, 2010 Wesley Reimer March 5, 2011 

 

 

DEPUTY REGISTRAR REPORT  

- Susan Lessard-Friesen 

 

In April of 2010, the position of Deputy Registrar within the MPhA was reinstated.  The Deputy Registrar oversees 

Quality Assurance/Continuous Quality Improvement initiatives and activities of the MPhA, the MPhA Database and 

Information Management System including assuring compliance with reporting requirements of the Canadian Institute 

for Health Information and the Office of the Manitoba Fairness Commissioner and Communication and 

Member/Professional Relations activities. 

  

Quality Assurance/Continuous Quality Improvement Initiatives  

 

In Pharmacy Practice 

 

Performance Assessment  

At the direction of Council, the MPhA Professional Development (PD) Committee has been involved in a thorough 

review and evaluation of competency and performance assessment tools being using in other jurisdictions to assist 

healthcare providers maintain competence and improve practice.  The information gathered will be used to help guide 

and advance the performance assessment process for pharmacists.  

      
 

The Network for Interprofessional Continuing Professional Development  for the Health Professions in 

Manitoba 

 

Interprofessional collaborative patient-centered practice facilitates patient goals, improves communication among 

health care providers, fosters respect for the contributions of all providers, and optimizes participation in clinical 

decision-making. Over the past few years there has been mounting evidence in support of the contribution of 

collaborative patient-centred practice to improving patient health outcomes by facilitating access to health care, 

fostering the provision of quality care and quality improvement, enhancing satisfaction of patients and health care 

providers, and improving patient safety.    

 

There are a number of initiatives currently underway across Canada and in other countries in support of the provision 

of interprofessional education to facilitate collaborative patient-centred care however; these initiatives focus primarily 

on health professionals at the undergraduate or pre-licensure level.   At the University of Manitoba twelve of the health 

professional faculties have come together under the leadership of Dr. Ruby Grymonpre to incorporate interprofessional 

education into the curriculum of their undergraduate programs.  

 

Beginning in 2009, the PD Committee recognized that a significant gap existed within the province with respect to the 

provision of interprofessional learning opportunities for licensed practitioners at sites across the continuum of care and 

including, most notably, direct patient care settings in the community.  It was at this time that the Committee embarked 

on an innovative initiative to create a Network of partners from all of the health professions in the province to plan, 

develop, and deliver competency-based interprofessional continuing professional development (CPD) programming 

designed specifically to meet the learning needs of health professionals, and to facilitate the emergence of collaborative 

patient-centred care.    

 

Over the course of 2010 and under the direction of the Project Manager, Karen Grant (Aylee Consulting), the Network 

Partners Advisory Group came together to establish a Terms of Reference, Program Sponsorship Guidelines and a 

Sponsor’s Agreement.  Membership on the Partners Advisory Group currently includes representation from:  

 College of Physicians and Surgeons of Manitoba  

 College of Registered Nurses of Manitoba  
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 College of Registered Psychiatric Nurses of Manitoba  

 Faculty of Dentistry, University of Manitoba  

 Faculty of Medicine, University of Manitoba and the Office of CPD 

 Faculty of Nursing, University of Manitoba 

 Faculty of Pharmacy, University of Manitoba  

 Health Insurance Reciprocal of Canada  

 Health Programs and Services Executive Network  

 Manitoba College of Family Physicians  

 Manitoba Institute for Patient Safety  

 Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association and the MPhA PD Program  

 Prescription Information Services of Manitoba  

 

In the spring of 2010, the first iCPD Manitoba event was developed by the Network and provided on May 7 th in 

conjunction with the Office of CPD 2010 Program.  Since that time, the iCPD Manitoba Network has provided a series 

of monthly programs called the Friday@Noon Series that are offered to interprofessional groups of healthcare 

providers across the province by videoconference.  

 

The Manitoba Institute for Patient Safety (MIPS) Simulation Project 

MIPS is undertaking an innovative initiative to develop patient safety case simulations focused on improving 

communication, collaboration and the provision of patient-centred care by healthcare providers.  The case simulation 

development process takes into consideration current work underway in Canada and internationally, such as the 

Canadian Patient Safety Institute (CPSI) Competencies, the British Columbia Competency Framework for 

Interprofessional Collaboration and patient safety curricula.  Case simulations are being developed for use by 

interprofessional groups of healthcare providers in education, remediation, continuing professional development and in 

orientation programs for internationally trained graduates.  Representing the MPhA, the Deputy Registrar currently 

serves as Chair of the Simulation Project Working Group.  The anticipated launch date of the program, called the Learn 

to be safe case simulations, will take place in June of 2011. 

 

In Pharmacies 

Quality Assurance Program:  Self-Assessment and Onsite Inspection Process 

 

The objective in this segment of the overall MPhA QA/CQI program is for all pharmacies to undertake an annual QA 

Self-Assessment and for every pharmacy to undergo an onsite inspection within a five-year period.  At the close of 

2010, 85% of all pharmacies (community and institutional), 91% of community pharmacies alone and 80% of 

institutional pharmacies alone have undergone an onsite inspection within the last 5-year period.  Excluded from this 

calculation are the eight teaching and urban community hospitals in the province for which the QA program is currently 

under development.  The QA program for these facilities has previously involved a multidisciplinary approach to the 

assessment process which included the other provincial regulatory colleges and it is hoped that this process may be re-

instated.    

 

At December 31st, 2010 there were three hundred and sixty eight licensed pharmacies in Manitoba.  

Manitoba Location Hospital 
Community 

(Includes IPS) 

Total 

(Includes IPS) 
Community IPS 

Winnipeg 12 198 210 13 

Other City (population 

10,000 to 50,000)*  
7 34 41 - 

Rural  21 96 117 2 

Total 40 328 368 15 

During the period January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010 there were two pharmacy closings and seven new pharmacy 

openings. 

 

Change Winnipeg 
Other City (population 

10,000 to 50,000)* 

Rural 

Manitoba 

( population 

< 10,000) 

Total 

Pharmacies 

Closing 
2 - 2 4 

Pharmacies 

Opening 
7 - - 7 

* Other Manitoba cities with municipal populations of 10,000 to 50,000 include Brandon, Morden, Portage la Prairie, 

The Pas, Thompson and Winkler.  
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Through Complaints Resolution 

 

As part of the MPhA’s commitment to enhance quality of care and patient safety in Manitoba pharmacies, Council has 

requested that the Complaints Committee communicate information on medication incidents through the regularly 

published Practice Advisories for Patient Safety column of the MPhA Newsletter.  It is hoped that by communicating 

this information, pharmacists will be provided with an opportunity to reflect on the incident and their own practice to 

discover ways to improve. 

 

Number of Complaints Filed Each Year 

 

2002 

 

2003 

 

2004 

 

2005 

 

2006 

 

2007 

 

2008 

 

2009 

 

2010 

46 37 53 44 12 18 12 16 16 

 

MPhA Database and Information Management System 

 

The MPhA has engaged the services of OlaTech Corporation a local, web-based, software development company to 

design and implement a comprehensive and highly reliable information and database management system to meet the 

unique and specific needs of our members, the public and our complex communication, regulatory and licensing 

processes.   

 

Since early 2010, the MPhA has been consulting with OlaTech to gain a better understanding of our needs and 

comparable systems in use by other regulatory bodies across the country.  The in1touch application developed by 

OlaTech is the solution to meet the needs of the MPhA.  Over the coming weeks, as the system is phased in, members 

will be introduced to a new MPhA website that is easy to navigate and use to access information, an improved 

messaging and communication system, online licence renewal in 2011 and an enhanced system to support participation 

in continuing professional development.  

 

It is the responsibility of The Office of the Manitoba Fairness Commissioner (OMFC) to ensure that all provincial 

regulatory authorities (PRAs) are in compliance with the Fair Registration Practices in Regulated Professions Act with 

respect to the registration and licensing of international graduates.   To determine compliance with the Act, the OMFC 

has developed reporting requirements for all PRAs to report data at certain points within their registration and licensing 

processes for international graduates.  Reporting to the OMFC begins on January 1st, 2011.  The OMFC has made some 

government funding available through their office to assist the PRAs meet these reporting requirements.  In response, 

the MPhA had submitted a funding proposal to the OMFC and was granted funds in the amount of $13,260.00 to 

configure and augment the new MPhA Data and Information Management System to provide seamless reporting to the 

OMFC. 

 

Communication and Member/Professional Relations 

 

Non-Potable Alcohol and Inhalant Abuse Committee 

 

Established twenty years ago, the Non-Potable Alcohol and Inhalant Abuse Committee (NPAIAC) is a group of 

concerned partners from community organizations, the health professions, the business sector, government and law 

enforcement organizations who have come together:  

 to share information, develop resources and provide education on substance abuse; 

 encourage research on effective methods of prevention and treatment of substance abuse, and 

 facilitate the development and adoption of legislation addressing substance abuse. 

 

Since its inception, Larry Leroux, a community pharmacist and former pharmacy owner in Winnipeg, has served as 

Chair of the NPAIAC and the MPhA has been represented on the Committee.  In 2010, at the 20th Anniversary 

Meeting of the NPAIAC, Larry Leroux was presented with a Certificate of Thanks and Appreciation to honor him as a 

Community Builder by the then Member of Parliament for Winnipeg North, The Honourable Judy Wasylycia-Leis. 

 

The NPAIAC held their final meeting on September 21st, 2010.  Since those early days 20 years ago, the NPAIAC has 

continued to tackle the tough problems associated with non-potable alcohol and inhalant abuse in our communities 

through building awareness of the problem, providing education and facilitating the introduction of legislation to more 

effectively prevent the illicit sale and abuse of intoxicating substances.  Most recently the NPAIAC was involved in the 

introduction of Part 7 – Intoxicating Substances of the new Public Health Act which provides for much greater fines 

and prosecution for retailers and individuals who knowingly sell substances that will be used as intoxicants. 

   

Mount Carmel Clinic has agreed to continue to oversee the NPAIAC website (www.inhalant.ca) which contains a 

wealth of information and resources on non-potable and inhalant abuse developed over the years.  Remaining NPAIAC 

http://www.inhalant.ca/
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funds were distributed between two on-going projects.  Sage House of Mount Carmel Clinic has been provided with 

funding to develop a comic book to be distributed to elementary school children on the hazards of inhalant abuse.  The 

NPAIAC has also provided the MPhA with funding to sponsor a member of the PD Committee to participate in an 

educational program developed by the Canadian Association of Mental Health on Methadone Maintenance Therapy.  

Council has also provided funding to sponsor two members of the Standards of Practice Committee to participate in the 

CAMH program.  These three individuals comprise the core planning committee for the development of the MPhA 

Principles for the Provision of Methadone by Manitoba Pharmacists Certificate Program to be launched in early 2011. 

  

Partners Seeking Solutions with Seniors 

 

Originating in 2001, Partners Seeking Solutions with Seniors (PSSS) is a network of over 60 concerned stakeholders 

who have come together to promote awareness and increase knowledge concerning issues of substance misuse and 

abuse among older adults and to facilitate access to and the adoption of a range of evidence-based prevention and 

treatment options.  Stakeholders in PSSS include seniors, senior-serving organizations, health care organizations and 

individual practitioners, addiction service providers, self-help groups, government and academia.  The MPhA has been 

a partner in the PSSS network since 2003 and has been represented on the PSSS Board since 2009.  The Deputy 

Registrar currently serves as Co-Chair of the PSSS Education and Awareness Committee.  Pharmacists and pharmacies 

comprise nearly 10% of PSSS stakeholders.  

 

PSSS initiatives including a Peer Helping Program are supported by funding made available through the Winnipeg 

Foundation. 

 

Household Hazardous Material and Prescribed Material Stewardship Regulation –  

The Manitoba Medications Return Program 

 

The Household Hazardous Material and Prescribed Material Stewardship Regulation was introduced in Manitoba in 

February of 2010.  This regulation requires manufacturers of pharmaceuticals and natural health products, classified as 

household hazardous waste (HHW), to set up stewardship programs for the responsible disposal of unused or expired 

medications.  The Post Consumer Pharmaceutical Stewardship Association (PCPSA), an association representing 

pharmaceutical manufacturers is setting up and funding a Manitoba Medications Return Program for the public to 

return unused or expired medications through their community pharmacies free-of-charge.  This program will provide 

pharmacists and pharmacies with even greater assistance in helping the public, their clients, dispose of unused or 

expired medication in an environmentally-safe manner.  The Manitoba Medications Return Program consists of a 

public awareness campaign on the safe disposal of medication and a system whereby pharmacies are supplied with 

disposal containers for pharmaceuticals and natural health products returned by the public.  Once disposal containers 

are filled, there will be a pick-up and delivery service available free-of-charge to pharmacies to pick up the filled 

container and supply the pharmacy with a new container.  The program officially begins on April 1st, 2011.  Pharmacies 

began registration into the program in the last few months of 2010.  A joint letter from the PCPSA, MSP and MPhA 

introducing the program was sent to pharmacy managers.  An MPhA PD Program on the Manitoba Medications Return 

Program is planned for early 2011. 

 

Medication Use and Its Impact on Impaired Driving 

 

In 2010, the MPhA has been involved in discussions with Manitoba Public Insurance and the Addictions Foundation of 

Manitoba concerning the issue of medication use and its impact on impaired driving.  A joint initiative to increase 

public awareness and support patient counselling on the issue provided by pharmacists is planned for 2011. 

 

In closing, I would like to thank MPhA Council and Staff for their continued guidance and support as I transition into 

my new position.  I look forward to many years ahead as Deputy Registrar with the MPhA. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Susan Lessard-Friesen 

Deputy Registrar 

   

 

PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS  

- Shawn Bugden 
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE REPORT  

- Kristine Petrasko 

 

Membership 

Carol Boscow  

Shawn Bugden, Past Chair  

Divna Calic  

Cenzina Caligiuri 

Pat Cavanagh  

Fran Gira  

Kathy Hunter  

Heather Langtry  

Susan Lessard-Friesen, Deputy Registrar  

Courtney Marion  

Gloria Maydaniuk  

Kim McIntosh, Assistant Registrar 

Todd Mereniuk  

 Teryl Moore 

 

Geoff Namaka 

Amy Oliver  

Kristine Petrasko, Chair  

Farah Joy Rashid, Pharmacy Student 

Raeffaela Seed  

Advit Shah  

Trevor Shewfelt  

Dan Sitar  

Roger Tam  

Jenna Toth 

Pat Trozzo  

Tobi Tse  

Lyndsay Van De Vijsel, CSHP-MB Liaison 

Jennifer Whyte 

The MPhA PD Committee is comprised of pharmacists from a wide variety of practice areas including community and 

hospital pharmacy practice, administration and academia who share a strong commitment to life long learning in pharmacy 

and unparalleled dedication to ensuring pharmacists in this province have access to quality professional development 

programming to assist in meeting individual learning needs and improve practice.  We saw a few of the long-time members 

resign and thank them for their many years of guidance and service to the PD Committee.    

 

We are fortunate to have many continuing members as well as new graduate pharmacist members and pharmacy students 

which results in a perspective that is innovative, informed and reflects leading edge pharmacy practice.  

 

In 2010, we were pleased to welcome Kristine Petrasko as Chair of the PD Committee.  She has been an active participant 

and enthusiastic contributor on the Committee for several years and is a current member of the MPhA Council.  Kristine 

replaced Shawn Bugden as Chair when he began to serve his term as the MPhA Council President.  Shawn has been a long-

time PD Committee member representing the Morden/Winkler area, and continues to serve on the Committee.  We thank 

Shawn for his strong sense of leadership and vision that he brought to the Committee.  

 

The PD Committee would like to recognize the excellent support provided by the MPhA staff.  We wish to extend our 

thanks and appreciation to Kathy Cobb, the Professional Development Secretary, as well as Mala Persaud, Bev Robinson 

and Pamela Gordon for their outstanding assistance.  To Ronald Guse, Registrar, Susan Lessard-Friesen, Deputy Registrar 

and Ross Forsyth, Assistant Registrar, we appreciate your continued support and guidance.  

 

THE MPhA PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

 

In 2010, the Professional Development Committee provided 9 programs comprising a total of 21.5 accredited 

professional development hours (equivalent to 21.5 CEUs).    

 

The PD Committee gratefully acknowledges the sponsors listed below who have provided educational grants to 

support professional development programming for Manitoba pharmacists in 2010.  

  

0BJanuary 21, 2010 

Blueprint for Pharmacy – Designing the Future Together 

MPhA Accredited for 1.5 CEUs 

Speaker: Janet Cooper, BScPharm  

Sponsored by: MPhA 

Partnered with: CPhA 

1BFebruary 2, 2010 

Getting Over the ADHD Treatment Hurdles 

MPhA Accredited for 1.5 CEUs 

Speaker: Dr. Leslie Jocelyn, MD FRCPC 

Sponsored by: Purdue Pharma 

2BJune 8, 2010 

Vaccine Update 

MPhA Accredited for 2 CEUs 

Speakers: Dr. F. Aoiki, MD; and Dr. Blair Seifert, Pharm.D. FCSHP 

Sponsored by:  GlaxoSmithKline 
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Once again in 2010, the MPhA has provided funding to support programs developed by the PD Committee to address 

specific learning objectives in areas including legislation, patient safety, quality assurance/continuous quality 

improvement and those therapeutic areas that have been suggested by pharmacists on program evaluations. 

 

Live, interactive videoconferencing has provided pharmacists in rural areas with many more professional development 

opportunities.  Over the past year, the PD Committee has provided all MPhA PD programs via videoconference to 18 

rural videoconference sites across the province including Ashern, Arborg, Brandon, Dauphin, Flin Flon, Hodgson, 

Killarney, Portage la Prairie, Neepawa, Notre Dame de Lourdes, Roblin, Russell, Steinbach, St. Pierre, Swan River, 

The Pas, Thompson and Morden/Winkler.    

 

Video conferencing and webcasting of PD programs has provided an enhanced learning experience for pharmacists 

practicing in rural and urban centers alike. A recording of most programs is posted on the sbrc.tv website and may be 

accessed by pharmacists at anytime.  These advances have allowed pharmacists from across the province to make a 

connection, to share their experience and knowledge and to gain a much broader perspective on pharmacy practice in a 

variety of communities. 

 

Videoconference Site Coordinators 

 

Videoconferencing is an expensive technology for program delivery owing to the high degree of technical support 

necessary.  One way in which costs may be reduced is to have volunteer videoconference site coordinators trained to 

operate equipment and serve as the contact person to coordinate activities at the far-end site.  We were very fortunate to 

have the following pharmacists agree to serve as our videoconference site coordinators for 2010.  To each of them, we 

extend our sincere thanks and appreciation for their time and effort, which has allowed us to provide educational 

programs through videoconferencing to pharmacists in rural Manitoba.  

 

 

3BJune 11, 2010 

Methadone: An Introduction to Clinical Practice 

College of Family Physicians of Canada Accredited for 7 Mainpro-M1 credits, MPhA 

Accredited for 7 CEUs, (Video is 5 CEUs) 

Speakers: Dr. Lindy Lee, MD FRCPC CCSAM; Morag Fisher, MB ChB CCSAM; 

Nicole Nakatsu, BScPharm; Dr. Nichole Riese, MD CCFP; Dr. Adrian Hynes, MD 

FRCPC; and Marina Reinecke, MB ChB 

Sponsored by: University of Manitoba, Faculty of Medicine, Office of Continuing 

Medical Education, and MPhA 

4BSeptember 15 & 20, 2010 

Members Town Hall Discussion: Regulations Development Under the December 

2006 Pharmaceutical Act (Bill 41) 

MPhA Accredited for 2.5 CEUs 

Speakers: Shawn Bugden, BScPharm MSc 

Sponsored by MPhA 

5BOct. 20, 2010 

Medication Safety Here & Now: How Can We Make Our Practices Safer? 

MPhA Accredited for 2 CEUs 

Speakers: Dr. Colette Raymond, Pharm.D. MSc ACPRS; and Barbara Sproll, 

BScPharm 

Sponsored by: NABP Study Grant, and MPhA 

6BOct. 25, 2010 

Eyes Wide Shut: Evaluating Bias in Professional Development 

MPhA Accredited for 1.5 CEUs 

Speaker: Shawn Bugden, BScPharm MSc  

Sponsored by: MPhA 

7BDec. 1, 2010 

Pharmacy Technician Information Session 

MPhA Accredited for 1.5 CEUs 

Speakers: Ron Guse, BScPharm; Kristine Petrasko, BScPharm CRE; Debra Chartier; 

and Rose Dyck 

Sponsored by: MPhA 

Partnered with: The Canadian Association of Pharmacy Technicians (CAPT) 

Dec. 14, 2010 Atrial Fibrillation: New Approaches and Anticoagulants 

MPhA Accredited for 2 CEUs 

Speakers: Dr. Mark Friesen, BScPharm Pharm.D.; and Dr. Peter Thomson, BScPharm 

Pharm.D. 

Sponsored by: Boeringer-Ingelheim 
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Kathy Adriaansen – Neepawa Russ Keeler - Ashern 

Jay Boschman – Portage la Prairie Ken Marek – Portage la Prairie 

Blaire Cairns - Grandview Martin Michaels - Hodgson 

Pat Cavanagh - Brandon Whitney Mitchell - Roblin 

Lise Durand – Notre Dame de Lourdes Real Mulaire – St. Pierre 

Victor Eyolfson - Arborg Spencer Reavie – Russell 

Kerri Fitzpatrick - Gillam Derrick Sanderson - The Pas 

Fran Gira – Flin Flon Trevor Shewfelt - Dauphin 

Joey Gwozdz – Steinbach Jennifer Thackeray – Thompson 

Brent Havelange - Russell Corey Thompson - Flin Flon 

Chris Johnson – Killarney Jeff Wooster – Morden/Winkler 

Christine Klimuk - Swan River  

 

UThe MPhA Professional Development Requirement and Learning Portfolio System 

 

To support continuing competence and practice improvement, pharmacists in this province, like their colleagues across this 

country, in the U.S., the U.K. and other jurisdictions around the globe have adopted the concept of continuing professional 

development (CPD).  The CPD model is best described as a cyclical process that promotes self-assessment, development of 

a plan for learning, participation in planned learning activities, documentation of learning and reflection on learning 

outcomes.   

 

Originally introduced in April 2002, a major revision of the MPhA Learning Portfolio System took place during 2004.  

Owing to the significant input from pharmacists during the revision process, the revised system represents a truly 

collaborative effort while maintaining the integrity of the CPD model.  The professional development requirements of the 

revised system may be summarized as follows: 

 

1. Pharmacists must maintain a learning portfolio and document their learning activities on the existing 

Professional Development Log (PDL) sheets of the MPhA Learning Portfolio or alternate suitable form. 

 

2. Pharmacists are required to participate in a minimum of 25 hours of learning activities between November 1st 

and October 31st each year of which a minimum of 15 hours (equivalent to 15 CEUs) must be accredited 

learning activities.  The balance of 10 hours of learning activities may include non-accredited or accredited 

learning activities.  

 

3. All pharmacists who participate in a minimum of 50 hours of learning activities between November 1st and 

October 31st of each year, of which a minimum of 30 hours (equivalent to 30 CEUs) are accredited learning 

activities, will receive a MPhA Certificate of Life Long Learning in Pharmacy. 

 

4. Although major learning projects are still a desirable part of the learning portfolio, they are considered 

optional. 

 

5. At licence renewal, all pharmacists are required to submit their PDLs with their licence application to the 

MPhA office.   

 

6. Following the licence renewal period, a 20% random selection of practicing pharmacists is made and 

pharmacists selected are required to submit the CEU Certificates and/or other documents in support of their 

participation in the accredited learning activities listed on their PDLs.  In the revised system, all practicing 

pharmacists are entered into the selection pool each year and therefore, pharmacists may be selected in 

consecutive years.  This annual review is conducted by MPhA staff. 

 

The PD Committee continues to rely on feedback from pharmacists on ways in which the learning portfolio system 

may be improved and adapted to fit today’s busy pharmacy practice while continuing to support maintenance of 

competence and improvement of practice.  Over the course of 2010, the Committee has continued to consider and 

discuss additional objective assessment tools that pharmacists may use to assist in providing more meaningful self-

assessments and identification of individual learning needs.  The self-assessment tool of the MPhA Learning Portfolio 

represents only one model.  Currently, models incorporating knowledge assessments and peer and practice reviews are 

being used by pharmacists in other provinces.  There has been renewed interest among the provincial regulatory 

authorities for pharmacy to work more collaboratively on the development of performance assessment tools and quality 
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assurance processes to assist pharmacists.  The PD Committee continues to examine these and other performance 

assessment tools to determine their acceptability and effectiveness for pharmacists in Manitoba. 

 

2010 Learning Portfolio Summary and Professional Development Log  

 

At licence renewal, pharmacists are required to submit their Learning Portfolio Summary and Professional 

Development Log (PDL) sheets documenting they have met the professional development requirement for the period of 

November 1st to October 31st and listing the accredited and non-accredited learning activities they have participated in 

during this period.   

 

For the 2010 PD Year, pharmacists reported participating in an average of 25.5 hours (median = 21.5 hours) of 

accredited learning activities and an average of 12.3 hours (median = 10 hours) of non-accredited learning activities.   

In total, pharmacists reported participating in an average of 37.7 hours (median = 28.9 hours) of learning activities.  

The values for accredited learning activities are consistent with those reported for the last 4 years whereas the average 

number of non-accredited hours is slightly less than in recent years. 

 

 

 
 

In 2010, pharmacists have continued to significantly exceed the minimum PD requirement.  Of note, is that 

approximately 18% of pharmacists continue to report involvement in greater than 50 hours of learning activities during 

the year. 

 

 

 
 

Pharmacists have reported participating in both accredited and non-accredited learning activities in addressing self-

identified learning needs.  Non-accredited learning continues to be used by a majority of pharmacists and has 

comprised approximately 1/3 of pharmacists’ recorded professional development for the past several years.  
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The Learning Portfolio Summary (LPS) provides the PD Committee with the opportunity to conduct an informal needs 

assessment of the membership at the time of licence renewal.  Data is collected regarding competencies addressed by 

learning activities such as communication skills, jurisprudence, technical competencies, knowledge regarding disease 

conditions and drug therapy, provision of pharmaceutical care, and documentation.  In addition, pharmacists provide 

information on difficulties in accessing learning resources to address these competencies.  The information gathered 

from this needs assessment is used by the PD Committee in program planning. 

 

Pharmacists Awarded Certificates of Achievement 

 
The following pharmacists has been awarded a MPhA Certificate of Life Long Learning in Pharmacy in recognition of 

their outstanding participation in professional development activities during the 2010 PD Year.  Recognition is 

provided each year to pharmacists who have participated in a minimum of 50 hours of professional development 

activities of which a minimum of 30 hours involves participation in accredited learning activities.   

 

The MPhA congratulates the following pharmacists on their achievement: 
Beverley Alexiuk 

Robert Ariano 
Marian Attia 

Joanna Ayotte 

William Balacko 
Judy Bannerman 

Linda Barnes 

Eugene Baron 
Kristin Bartram 

Melvin Baxter 

Janice Beales 
Deborah Bell Kirby 

Anwar Bhojani 

Venetia Bourrier 
Marnie Boyle 

Corinne Brockman 

Alysha Buck 
Shawn Bugden 

Cenzina Caligiuri 

Lois Cantin 
William Cechvala 

Shanna Chan 

Rani Chatterjee-Mehta 
Lengim Chen Ingram 

J. Christine Davis 

Kathleen Christle 
M. Claire Gillis 

Janice Coates 

Louise Cooney 
John Cormier 

Marcin Cychowski 

Carol Davis 
Lisa De Groot 

Teresa Del Bigio 
Kenneth Del Bigio 

Pritpal Dhanjal 

Karen Di Marco 
Diana Dickof 

Betty Dong 

Marla Dueck 
Ingrid Dueck 

Erica Dueck 

Cecile Dumesnil 
Drena Dunford 

Rehana Durocher 

Sheri Dyck 
Akemi Ebata 

Rowena Fernando 

Evelyn Fletcher 
Linda Foley 

Christin Franken 

Rhonda Fusee 
Meghan Gaudry 

Marc Geirnaert 

Deborah Ginther 
Cheryl Gnanapragasam 

Kathryn Gorber 

Lorraine Graham 
Thomas Gray 

Ronald Guse 

Darren Hall 
Abdul Hassan 

Jennifer Hildebrand 

Lorraine Hilderman 
Tara Hoop 

Clinton Huber 

Melissa Jacobs 
Diane Johnson 

Pamela Johnson 
Joseph Kasper 

Kerry Kent 

Cheryl Kessler 
Zahid Khan 

Rhonda Kitchen 

Ernest Kiz 
Nancy Kleiman 

Meghann Klowak 

Linda Kuber 
Elmer Kuber 

Britt Kural 

Carey Lai 
Cory Lang 

Gwen Lawson 

Eric Lee 
Carla LeRoux 

Wilfird Lessak 

Susan Lessard-Friesen 
Thomas Ling 

Laureen Lipinski 

Jugnu Lodha 
Abe Loewen 

Reynold Loewen 

Christopher Louizos 
Melvin Love 

Dora Ma 

Janice Macalino 
Kyle MacNair 

Amarjeet Makkar 

Tara Maltman-Just 
B. Marie Berry 

Julie Mark 

Amy Marriott 
Gloria Maydaniuk 

Scott McDougall 
Kimberly McIntosh 

67%

33%

Accredited and Non-Accredited PD Hours 2010

Accredited

Non-Accredited



45 

David McKay 

Suzanne McKay 
Meghan McKechnie 

Nader Metry 

Maureen Morin 
Amanda Morrow 

Penny Murray 

Arlene Nabong 
Michael Namaka 

Geoffrey Namaka 

Khanh Nguyen 
Lindsay Nicole  

Lemanski Filz 

Claudia O'Donnell 
Olasumbo Ojo 

Marie-Claude Paradis 

Kristine Petrasko 
Siegfried Pfahl 

Philip Prech 

Barret Procyshyn 

Erin Ramalho 

Glen Rawluk 

Chad Ricard 

Derek Risbey 
Janine Rivest 

Jennifer Rogers 

Ligy Russel 
Dinah Santos 

Charles Scerbo 

Gerri Scott 
Blair Seifert 

Kelly Senkiw 

Robert Sitarz 
Glenda Sloane 

Catherine Smart 

Cathy Sochasky 
Amy Sood 

Alice Studney 

Jennifer Thackeray 
Natalie Thickson 

John Thompson 

Richard Thurmeier 

Jenna Toth 

Pasquale Trozzo 

Tobi Tse 

Lyndsay van de Vijsel 
Kori Wachniak 

Julia Walker 

Jennifer Wallace 
Jennifer Whyte 

Jennifer Wiebe 

Heather Wieler 
Lisa Willms 

Elizabeth Wilson 

Brooke Wilson 
Gwen Wischnewski 

Donna Woloschuk 

Dennis Wong 
Lorraine Woods 

Jeffrey Wooster 

Horst Wuerfel 
Cong Xie 

Cindy Yap-Wong 

Gina Yoo 

Osama Zaki 

 

 

Resources 

 

Over this past year, the PD Committee has continued to work to provide pharmacists with access to a broad range of educational 

programs and resources both in-house and via the MPhA PD pages. Resources available in the MPhA Library include accredited 

continuing education (CE) programs, videos/DVDs on a variety of therapeutic areas, speaking packages for pharmacists, select 

pharmacy practice journals and references and access to a computer workstation to search online resources.  A listing of the 

complete collection of resources housed in the MPhA Library may be found on the PD webpages of the MPhA website at 

www.napra.ca.   

 

With the assistance of our 2010 summer pharmacy student, Dennis Le, the PD pages have been updated to include many new 

listings of accredited CE programs and resources.  In addition, many of the MPhA PD programs have either been recorded onto 

DVD or posted on the sbrc.tv website and are made available to pharmacists free-of-charge.  Titles and topics of these recorded 

programs are listed on the PD pages.  In 2011, these resources will be made available on our upcoming MPhA website. 

 

The Canadian Council On Continuing Education in Pharmacy (cccep.ca) 

“Advancing pharmacy practice through quality continuing pharmacy education.” 

 

The Canadian Council On Continuing Education in Pharmacy (CCCEP) is the national coordinating and accrediting body for 

continuing pharmacy education in Canada.  Its members are appointed by the provincial pharmacy regulatory organizations.  

CCCEP members also include representatives from several national pharmacy organizations such as the Canadian Association of 

Pharmacy Technicians (CAPT), the Association of Faculties of Pharmacy of Canada (AFPC), the Canadian Society of Hospital 

Pharmacists (CSHP) and the Canadian Pharmacists Association (CPhA).  Assistant Registrar, Kim McIntosh, replaced Susan 

Lessard-Friesen as the Manitoba Delegate to the CCCEP Board.  Susan was a valuable member of the CCCEP Board of Directors 

for approximately 14 years, serving as President from 2004 to 2006.   

   

The CCCEP 2008-2011 Strategic Plan, adopted in June 2008, has four Key Strategic Areas (KSAs): 

1. Support Practice Quality and Change 

2. Provide Relevant, Quality Services 

3. Provide Leadership in CPD 

4. Optimize Corporate Performance 

 

The strategies and actions of the Strategic Plan have been aligned to the Blueprint for Pharmacy. 
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Progress on Strategic Plan for 2010: 

 

Certificate Program Accreditation Policy.  

The policy on the accreditation certificate programs was approved. CCCEP has been working on this policy for a number of 

years. The process included consultations with stakeholders and three reviews by the Board of Directors. The policy will be 

implemented in 2011 along with the revisions to the new guidelines and criteria for CCCEP accreditation. 

 

Comprehensive Review of CCCEP Program Accreditation Policy.  

An Accreditation Policy Review Task Group was established to oversee a comprehensive review of program accreditation policy. 

The Task Force has conducted a survey of stakeholders and two extensive facilitated discussions of the current and new 

directions for the accreditation policy. The results of the CPD/CE Summit co-sponsored with the Canadian Pharmacists 

Association will be used to inform the development of the new guidelines and criteria. The new guidelines will be approved and 

implemented in 2011. 

 

Accreditation of Podcasts Pilot Project. The Board of Directors approved a pilot project on the accreditation of podcasts by the 

Therapeutics Education Consortium (TC). Interim and summative evaluations will be undertaken. The Board will make a 

decision on the accreditation of Podcasts following the final evaluation of the pilot project. 

 

Policy Review. The governance system adopted in 2008 includes a tri-annual policy review. Policies reviewed and amended 

during the year included: By-Laws, Certificate Program Policy, Conflict of Interest Policy, Code of Conduct Policy, and Privacy 

Policy. 

 

CPD/CE Summit. CCCEP’s application for funding from Health Canada to host a Summit on Continuing Education and 

Professional Development was approved. A Steering Committee composed of interested stakeholders oversaw the organization 

of the Summits that took place in the Fall of 2010.  They gathered pharmacy stakeholders to describe an ideal future for CPD/CE 

and outline steps to achieve this goal.  The results were used to integrate the CCCEP policy review and the Blueprint Action 

Areas.   

 

Blueprint for Pharmacy. CCCEP has participated as a member of the Steering Committee. CCCEP has agreed to co-lead the 

implementation of Action 1.4 (Lifelong Learning) and Action 1.7 (CPD). The CPD/CE Summit focused on key questions relating 

to Action 1.4 (Lifelong Learning) and Action 1.7 (CPD). 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kristine Petrasko, Chair, and 

Kim McIntosh, Assistant Registrar 

 

 

STANDARDS OF PRACTICE COMMITTEE REPORT  

- Kyle MacNair, Co Chair, Pat Trozzo, Co Chair 

 

The role of the Standards of Practice Committee is to review, revise and/or develop minimum standards to guide pharmacists in 

their pharmacy practice.  The intent is to ensure that a satisfactory minimum practice level is maintained throughout Manitoba.  

Methods of implementation include Practice Directions, Guidelines, and Policies through recommendations to Council. 

The following is a report on the issues brought before the committee and their current status.  

 

MPhA Hospital Standards of Practice 

The MPhA Hospital Standards of Practice and Guideline document continues to be used as a framework for Manitoba hospital 

pharmacy practice and forms the basis for hospital inspections.  A review and update of the document continues.   

 

MPhA Harm Reduction Guidelines 

Manitoba Guidelines on the Provision of Methadone have been developed for use in Manitoba and are posted on the MPhA 

NAPRA website. 

 

MPhA Compounding Guidelines  

Guidelines for extemporaneous compounding by Manitoba pharmacists have been developed and will be posted on the MPhA 

NAPRA website. 

 

MPhA Technician Verify Technician Pilot Project 

The pilot project format approved by Council for the Health Sciences Centre, St. Boniface Hospital, Victoria Hospital, Concordia 

Hospital, Brandon Hospital and Thompson Hospital and the Seven Oaks Hospital has been updated.  Expansion of the pilot to 

other facilities requires application and approval by Council. 
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Committee Members 

 

The position of Standards of Practice Chair was shared between Councillor Penny Murray and Past President Pat Trozzo.  The 

committee would like to thank Pat and Penny for their considerable efforts to support the efforts of MPhA and the Standards of 

Practice Committee. 

 

A special thank you is extended to members of the Standards of Practice Committee and the ad hoc sub committees and working 

groups for their dedicated work over the last year. The group members are thanked for their dedicated service.  

 

The year 2011 is expected to be both exciting and challenging as the committee works on drafting Practice Directions for the new 

regulations under the new Act (2006).  

 

 The current development work of the committee is done under the old Pharmaceutical Act.  When the new Act comes into effect, 

the expectation is that the current standards and guidelines will be transferred to the new Act and subsequently revised to reflect 

the expanded pharmacy practice possible under Bill 41. 

 

MPhA members interested in participating in this process or other areas of standards development are encouraged to submit their 

name by contacting the Association office.  Teleconference meeting attendance is available for members located in rural/remote 

areas and newer Internet based technology is aggressively being reviewed.  All participation is welcome. 

The Chairs would like to thank the staff of Pharmacy House for their ongoing support and especially Assistant Registrar, Ross 

Forsyth for his high level of assistance and cooperation.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kyle MacNair, Co Chair 

Pat Trozzo, Co Chair 

Penny Murray, Past Co Chair 

Ross Forsyth, Assistant Registrar 

 

2010 Standards of Practice Members: 

 

Alison Supina Jennifer Marsh Ross Forsyth 

Angie McGuirk Jennifer Thackeray  Scott Groen 

Anna Coulter  Jesse Tottle Scott McFettors 

Barbara Cinnamon Julie Dyck Shane Pottle 

Betty Dong Kathryn Adriaansen  Shawn Bugden, Council Chair 

Bonnie Coombs Kathryn Gorber Sheldon Kokorudz 

Cathy Savage  Kris Allen Sheri Dyck 

Dale Crawford Kristin Bartram Shouren Bose 

Daren Jorgenson Kyle MacNair Tara Maltman-Just 

Dave Mullins Lorraine Deans Tobi Tse 

Dennis Wong Marie Berry Todd Mereniuk 

Doug Penner Marilyn Sidhu Trevor Shewfelt 

Emad Khalil Michele Fontaine  

Floyd Lee Michelle Glass  

Fran Gira MPhA Intern  

Gayle Romanetz Nadine Small denBrok  

Gary Cavanagh Nick Honcharik  

Geoff Namaka Nicole Nakatsu  

Glenda Marsh Pat Trozzo  

Greg Harochaw Paul Clark  

Gwen Gill Penny Murray  

Jan Coates Quinton Didyk  

Jane Alderdice Robin Coulter  

Jane Lamont Robin Hildebaugh  

Jasmine Wong Ron Eros  

Jason Pankratz Ron Kozak  
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NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PHARMACY REGULATORY AUTHORITIES (NAPRA) REPORT  

– Pat Trozzo 

 

Board Structure 

 

Since our last meeting of this Association in 2010, the National Association of Pharmacy Regulatory Authorities (NAPRA) has held 

two face-to-face meetings of its board.  The board met on April 17th & 18th, 2010 in Ottawa ON and on November 6th & 7th, 2010 in 

St.John’s NL.  The Newfoundland and Labrador Pharmacy Board were celebrating their 100th anniversary and hosted a wonderful 

weekend for NAPRA.  For both meetings Manitoba was represented by the Registrar, Mr. Ronald Guse and myself. 

 

At the April meeting the board re-elected Ms. Dianne Donnan of the Alberta College of Pharmacists as its President and Mr. David 

McLeod from the Prince Edward Island Pharmacy Board as its Vice-President.  As well, Ms. Diane Brideau-Laughlin of the New 

Brunswick Pharmaceutical Society and Ms. Debra McCullough were elected to the Executive Committee as director members.  With 

Ms. Donnan’s re-election, the organization does not have a Past-President. 

 

NAPRA Membership 

 
The NAPRA board officially welcomed the Nunavut Department of Health and Social services as a member.  With the entrance 

of Nunavut, NAPRA now represents all ten provinces and three territories 

 

International Pharmacy Graduate (IPG) Gateway to Canada 

 
NAPRA had developed a concept paper regarding creation of a IPGs’ Gateway to Canada.  Application was made to HRSDC 

which was accepted in December 2009 and approved for funding of 3.7 million dollars over 3 years.  The objectives of the 

project are:  

 Create a single point of access for IPGs to access information for licensure in Canada and to allow screening and 

triaging of applications 

 Provide tools to help assess their readiness to come to Canada and identify their learning gaps 

 Develop a national shared database to reduce duplication and make information/statistics available to all NAPRA 

members in a secure way 

 

A project manager, project officer and administrative support have been put in place.  As well, media and information technology 

consultants have been contracted to begin the necessary work.  In order to streamline the licensing process for IPGs, one aspect 

of the project is to identify opportunities to standardize/align, as much as possible across the various jurisdictions, the steps in the 

IPG licensing process.  The steering committee was scheduled to meet in Newfoundland at the conclusion of the board meeting 

to discuss next steps. 

 

Natural Health Products 

 
In January 2010 NAPRA re-affirmed its position on the sale of non-approved marketed Health Products.  NAPRA released its 

position statement ―Pharmacists should not sell a marketed health product without a Drug Identification Number (DIN), Natural 

Product Number (NPN), or Drug Identification Number for Homeopathic Medicine (DIN_HM). “  Some media attention did 

follow the release of the position statement.   

 

 

NAPRA continues to monitor Health Canada’s work on the licencing of Natural Health Products.  At the April meeting the board 

was informed that as off March 31st, 2010 Health Canada had dealt with 80% of the applications meaning that there are ~27,000 

products on the market.  As well the board was told Health Canada has made amendments to the regulations around Natural 

Health Products and was seeking public input and would then educate the public and health care professionals about the changes.  

 

Standards of Practice for Pharmacy Technicians  

 

At the November meeting the NAPRA board confirmed that scope of practice and standards of practice for pharmacy technicians 

are required.  These standards of practice have been awaited by CCCAP.  The board authorized the development of these 

standards through the current committee.    

 

Fee increases  
 

The board was reminded by the Manitoba representatives that a commitment had been made to review the NAPRA Revenue 

model as part of the strategic planning process in April 2011.  A task force was set up to develop alternative funding models to be 

considered in April 2011.  The Manitoba representatives were asked to be part of this process.   A consultant will be contracted to 
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help with this process.  They will also be tasked with determining what other national organizations use as a revenue model.  The 

goal is to determine a more equitable revenue model as well as how increases should be applied in future years. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve as the Manitoba representative to the National Association of Pharmacy Regulatory 

Authorities.   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Pat Trozzo, Board Director 

Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association 

 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS REPORT  

– Lavern Vercaigne, Chair       

 

The Board of Examiners met on several occasion during 2010 and the early part of 2011.  During the latter part of 2010, the 

Board reviewed the licensing processes used for International Pharmacy Graduates at Entry or Practice and reviewed the 

information posted at the MPhA website.   

 

The review resulted in the following decisions by the Board: 

 

 All documents verified from outside of Manitoba need to be notarized whereas notarized or certified would be 

acceptable for documents verified within Manitoba. 

 

 PEBC documents are to come directly to MPhA via email or fax.  Confirmation of PEBC status can be done through 

the applicant providing the certificate of qualification or the letter from PEBC describing their qualification and then 

the MPhA will also get verification of standing directly from PEBC.   

 

 Copies of all emails between the Association and candidates, as well as notes from all conversations (telephone or in 

person), will be included in the applicants file.  

 

 Should the name, as given by the applicant, differ from the name registered by the Pharmacy Examining Board of 

Canada (PEBC) follow-up will occur to confirm the identity and consistence information is being provided to the two 

organizations. 

 

 Copies of university degrees and program transcripts kept by PEBC are accessible and need not be retained by MPhA.  

The requirement for the applicant to provide a notarized or certified copy of his/her degree is removed from the 

licensing requirements for MPhA. 

 

 The Committee agreed that a notarized copy of a letter of standing from their most current/recent jurisdiction of 

licensure is required and Council agreed to add the requirement for a signed attestation to the applications to confirm 

the applicant has never had their name removed from a register of pharmacists in any jurisdiction. 

 

 The Board removed the requirement for a work record to be provided by the applicant. 

 

 The Board certified the applicant’s passport size photo must be verified (or certified) and this photo will be used as 

confirmation during the writing of the jurisprudence examination. 

 

 Only original documents received directly from approved fluency testing agencies will be accepted and the MPhA 

office will be required to verify the document by following-up directly with the agency providing the document. 

 

 The criminal record check can be from the RCMP or any local police service but must include verification from the 

Canadian Police Information Centre (CPIC). 

 

 The Registrar and the Chair of the Board of Examiners will review and signoff the application as acceptable before it is 

taken to the Board of Examiners for final review and consideration for approval.   

 

The membership of the Board of Examiner has changed considerably since the last report to the Annual General Meeting.  The 

members will know that David Collins resigned his deanship to become Vice Provost at the University of Manitoba and moved 

off Council.  As acting Dean, Lavern Vercaigne was automatically on the Committee and subsequently appointed as the Chair by 

Council.  Once the new Dean begins later in 2011 Dr. Vercaigne will move off the Board and Council will need to identify a new 

Chair.  The Board also welcomed President Sean Bugden as a new member.  In addition, the lay person appointed to the 
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Committee, Sarah Zaharia, resigned her Council position and was automatically removed from the Board of Examiners.  A new 

Council member, Donna Forbes joined Council in January 2011 and was appointed to the Board of Examiners.  Finally, The 

Board welcomed Barbara Sproll as a ―pharmacist at large‖ appointed to the Board.  With all these changes, we are most fortunate 

the Gayle Romanetz continued on the Board 

 

Over the last 12 months, the Board reviewed many applications and is pleased to report the following applicant successfully met 

the registration and licence requirements in Manitoba: 

 

NAME COUNTRY/ 

PROVINCE 

REGIS.  

DATE 

 

ALI, Rizwan India, 2000 November 15, 2010 

AL-SAWAIR, Haitham Jordan, 1996 September 13, 2010 

BREIK, Noor Jordan, 2003 December 13, 2010 

CHEUNG, Kelly Saskatchewan, 2010 September 22, 2010 

CHOHAN, Harjot India, 1999 November 4, 2010 

DEVONALD, Nicola Wales, 2003 May 3, 2010 

DICK, Matthew Saskatchewan, 2009 June 10, 2010 

FITZPATRICK, Kerri Saskatchewan, 2010 July 23, 2010 

FROESE, Rebecca Saskatchewan, 2010 August 10, 2010 

GAMI, Falgooni India, 2004 August 6, 2010 

GAUTHIER, Vanessa Saskatchewan, 2010 August 10, 2010 

GIBSON, Meghan Saskatchewan, 2010 September 23, 2010 

HALL, Alison Saskatchewan, 2010 August 19, 2010 

HAMILTON, Kevin Saskatchewan, 2010 July 21, 2010 

JACOBSON, Amanda Saskatchewan, 2010 August 4, 2010 

MACALINO, Janice Philippines, 2004 August 17, 2010 

MAJUMDAR, Pijush India, 2004 September 17, 2010 

MARRIOTT, Amy Nova Scotia, 2003 July 28, 2010 

MOGHADDASIN, Solam Iran, 2001 July 9, 2010 

MOSHIRI, Kayvan Iran, 2005 November 4, 2010 

NAIDOO, Preveshen South Africa, 1994 May 19, 2010 

NAYAK, Jainit India, 2007 July 26, 2010 

NAZIER, Ramy Egypt, 2001 August 12, 2010 

PASMAN, Brian British Columbia, 1983 August 17, 2010 

PATEL, Darshanaben India, 2005 August 6, 2010 

PATEL, Hemant India, 1998 November 8, 2010 

PATEL, Krupaben India, 2008 December 8, 2010 

PATEL, Rahulkumar India, 2000 November 4, 2010 

PATEL, Saurabhkumar India, 2004 October 18, 2010 

PATEL, Varsheshkumar India, 2003 November 22, 2010 

PAULEY, Heather Saskatchewan, 2010 July 28, 2010 

PETERS, Lincoln Nova Scotia, 2008 September 16, 2010 

POPESCU, Ionela Madalina Romania, 1997 October 18, 2010 

RAHMAN, Md. Khalilur Pakistan, 1991 October 28, 2010 

RAHMATI, Mahin Iran, 1991 April 8, 2010 

SHARMA, Ashish India, 1996 July 1, 2010 

STEFAN, Carmen Romania, 1986 July 13, 2010 

TAKLA, Christina Saskatchewan, 2010 July 13, 2010 

THOMPSON, Matthew Alberta, 2010 July 20, 2010 



 51 

TYNES, Stephen Nova Scotia, 2010 September 17, 2010 

VARGA, Lawrence British Columbia, 1995 November 8, 2010 

ZUBAIR, Mohammed India, 1996 October 12, 2010 

 

The Boards wishes to thank Administrative Assistant Bev Robinson, Executive Assistant Mala Persaud and Registrar Ronald 

Guse for their hard work and support of the Board.   

 

Respectfully submitted on behalf of the Board, 

Lavern Vercaigne, Chair       

 

Board members: 

Shawn Bugden 

Gayle Romanetz 

Barbara Sproll 

Donna Forbes 

 

 

AWARDS & NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT  

- Randall Stephanchew 

 

The Awards & Nominating Committee makes the following recommendations for awards for 2011: 

 2011 Robins Bowl of Hygeia - Rem Weiss. 

 2010 Pharmacist of the Year - Pat Trozzo. 

 2011 Bonnie Schultz Memorial Award for Practice Excellence - Gregory Harochaw. 

 Honorary Member - No recipient at this time.  

 Honorary Life Members:    

- Raymond Biglow 

- Alistaire Pringle  

 Centennial Award – No recipient at this time. 

 2011 Patient Safety Award – Venetia Bourier. 

 

The following members will receive 50 Year Gold Pins and Certificates: 

 

 

The following members will receive their 25 Year Silver Pins and Certificates: 

 Michael  Allen 

 Alvaro Bras 

 Cenzina Caligiuri  

 Alan Dilay 

 Halyna Ferens 

 Charles Li 

 Tara Lyons Cork 

 Susanne Maskell  

 Angela McGuirk 

 Iqbal  Riyaz 

 Eugene Baron 

 Kenneth Biberdorf 

 Harry Chunick 

 Darryl Darling 

 Larry Ladyman 

 Duane Nieman 

 Alistaire Pringle 

 Patricia Sedun 

 David Thompson 

 William Smith 
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 Natalie Thickson 

 Wanda Turner 

 Alan Wilson 

 

 The following recipients received the following M.Ph.A. Awards in 2010: 

 M.Ph.A. Gold Medal - Carolyn Lawrance (graduate in May 2010) 

 M.Ph.A. Silver Medal  - Beverley Spriggs (graduate in May 2010) 

 M.Ph.A. President’s Prize  - Divna Calic (graduate in May 2010) 

 Stewart G. Wilcox Award  - Shannon Smith 

 Dr. J. R. Murray Scholarship - Justin Ling (graduate in May 2010) 

 William G. Eamer/MPhA Post-Graduate Scholarship - Ousama Rachid 

 William G. Eamer/MPhA - Undergraduate Awards:  

- Kathryn Peterson             

- Lucy-Rose Vuong 

Karin Ens                         

- Farah Rashid 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Randall Stephanchew, Chair  

 

Committee Members: 

Ronald Guse, Registrar 

Leann McCannel  

Penny Shefrin    

Scott McFeetors    

Grant Lawson  

Lavern Vercaigne 

Jarrid McKitrick 

Diane Ferguson 

 

 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE REPORT  

- John Cormier 

 

The Governance Committee is a standing committee recently created as a result of the findings of the Price Waterhouse Cooper 

(PWC) Capacity Review of MPhA. The terms of reference for this new committee include the following mandate and 

responsibilities: 

 

MANDATE 

 To provide initial and ongoing review and to make recommendations to Council about the governance structure of the 

Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

 To review current governance structure and make recommendations to Council. 

 To complete an environmental scan of types of governance structures used by other regulatory bodies. 

 To consult an expert in organization plan development and implementation. 

 To review governance structures of the Association in line with the requirements of December 2006 Pharmaceutical 

Act (Bill 41) and the Regulated Health Professions Act, and all other Acts under which the Association must operate. 

 To conduct a thorough assessment of the governance-related needs of the Association and Council and make 

recommendations to Council regarding committee structure to support the role of Council. 

 To assess the need for a Finance and Risk Committee to oversee the Association’s financial affairs and monitor 

organization risk, and a Compensation and Performance Committee to make recommendations to Council on 

compensation for councillors, committee work and senior staff, and to monitor the effectiveness of Council.  

 To assess the needs for and develop the next steps in the implementation of organization changes. 

 If Council puts the PWC-recommended committees in place, to then assess the need for an Executive Committee. 

 To recommend to Council terms of reference for any new governance-related committees, including, as needs change, 

updated terms of reference for this committee. 
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 To provide ongoing review and monitoring of the effectiveness of governance structures of the organization and report 

findings to Council. 

 

The committee has met on December 6th, 2010 and January 17th, 2011 leading to recommendations that council establishes a 

Compensation and Performance Committee and a Finance and Risk Committee, as per the recommendations of Price Waterhouse 

Cooper. There was also a recommendation that, Council establish a policy that requires a strategic planning session in the fall of 

even years and at every fall there is a review of the strategic plan, goals and measurement. As such council has created a standing 

Finance and Risk Committee and an ad hoc Compensation Committee. Terms of Reference have been created for these 

committees. 

 

Ongoing work for the Governance Committee includes: 

 Environmental Scan of Governance Models 

 Governance Model Consultant 

 Planning Capacity of Council 

 Renewal Capacity of Council 

 Policy Development 

 Terms of Council Members 

 Council Meeting Performance Review 

 Succession of the President 

 Role clarification of Council and Committees 

 

On behalf of the committee and submitted respectfully, 

John Cormier, chair 

 

Committee members: 

Shawn Bugden 

Gary Cavanagh 

Ronald Guse 

Carey Lai 

Heather Langtry 

Bill Regehr 

Randy Stephanchew 

 

 

PHARMACY EXAMINING BOARD OF CANADA (PEBC) REPORT  

- Shawn Bugden 

 

Report of the Representative to the Pharmacy Examining Board of Canada 

 

The Pharmacy Examining Board of Canada (PEBC) is the national certification body for the pharmacy profession in Canada.  

Since 1963, when PEBC was established by a Special Act of Parliament, this non-profit organization has been assessing the 

qualifications and competence of candidates for licensing by pharmacy provincial regulatory authorities.  

 

Beginning with an appointment in 2009, it has been my pleasure to serve as the representative of the Manitoba Pharmaceutical 

Association on the board of PEBC.  Manitoba has been well served and has a strong history of involvement in the PEBC board.  

In this regard, the acting Dean, Faculty of Pharmacy, University of Manitoba, Dr. Lavern Vercaigne continued his service to the 

PEBC board in 2010 as a representative of the Association of Faculties of Pharmacy of Canada.  The PEBC board’s composition 

has also been changed to reflection the expansion of the organization’s mandate in the evaluation of pharmacy technicians.  The 

board now includes one member from the Canadian Association of Pharmacy Technicians (CAPT) and two members from the 

Canadian Association of Pharmacy Technician Educators Association. 

 

PEBC plays an important role in the assessment of pharmacists who have taken their training outside of Canada.  PEBC has an 

extensive and thorough process of document assessment prior to allowing candidates to write the Evaluating Exam.  MPhA and 

other jurisdictions are examining their local processes and the overlap with PEBC processes to maintain the integrity of document 

assessment but eliminate any unnecessary duplication.  Over 1000 pharmacists passed the Evaluating Exam in 2010.  This exam 

determines eligibility to write the Qualifying Exams written by graduates of Canadian Pharmacy Programmes.  There was 

considerable growth in the number of pharmacists writing the Qualifying Part #1 (written multiple choice questions) and the Part 

#2 (OSCE – Objective Structured Clinical Examination) in 2010 with approximately 1300 pharmacists added to the Register. 

 

The assessment of technicians was more extensive in 2010.  Approximately 900 pharmacy technicians successfully completed 

the Evaluating Exam in 2010.  This is up considerably from 2009 when approximately 200 technicians completed this exam.  
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During 2010, almost 400 technicians completed the Qualifying Exam and were added to the Pharmacy Technician Register.  It is 

hoped that the Evaluating Exam for technicians will be held in Manitoba for the first time in 2011.  While more issues need to be 

addressed (bridging programs, status of Manitoba pharmacy technicians in the absence of full regulation); the Evaluating Exam 

represents an important first step. 

 

Extensive information, including orientation manuals/videos and sample OSCE stations are provided at the PEBC website 

(www.pebc.ca).  Each year the 4th year pharmacy students are provided with a live orientation lecture by their provincial PEBC 

board member. Manitoba pharmacy students continue to perform well on the PEBC Qualifying Exam and were once again 

among the top schools in the country (3rd 2010, 1st in 2003, 2006, 2008, 2009).  Several presentations were also made this year to 

various technicians groups to provide some guidance on the PEBC process and its application for Manitoba technicians.  

 

The PEBC examination process is a major undertaking. This process would not be possible without the dedicated group of 

volunteers who give back to the profession by helping to administer the PEBC exam.  The Faculty of Pharmacy also continues to 

provide support and assistance to PEBC in a number of ways. On behalf of PEBC, please accept our thanks for this important 

service to the profession of pharmacy.  Thank you for the opportunity to continue to serve as your PEBC board member, I look 

forward to continued service to ensure excellence in the evaluation process for our profession.  

 

PEBC – ―Providing Excellence in Certification for the Pharmacy Profession‖ 

Respectfully submitted, 

Shawn Bugden 

Board Member for Manitoba  

The Pharmacy Examining Board of Canada  

 

 

FACULTY OF PHARMACY REPORT   

-  Lavern M. Vercaigne 

 

Please note that portions of the following report have been abstracted from the full ―Faculty of Pharmacy Annual Report for July 

1, 2009 to June 30, 2010‖ available as a pdf document on the Faculty’s website at 

<http://umanitoba.ca/faculties/pharmacy/about/index.html>. 

 

1. Acting Dean’s Message 

 

I am honoured to provide the Acting Dean’s message for the 2010 annual report to MPhA.  As many of you will already 

know, Dr. David Collins accepted a new position within the University of Manitoba as the Vice-Provost (Academic 

Planning and Programs). During his tenure as Dean, Dr. Collins provided outstanding leadership in building a successful 

Pharmacy program, expanding resources for students, faculty and staff, and spearheading a move to the Bannatyne campus 

and our new home in the Apotex Centre. Dean Collins guided the learning of undergraduate and graduate pharmacy 

students over the last 11 years. He also maintained an active research program and was an advocate for the Faculty of 

Pharmacy and the University of Manitoba locally, nationally and internationally. As Dean, he built many relationships with 

alumni and friends of the Faculty and made major contributions to the profession of pharmacy in Canada. It is with our 

sincere thanks and best wishes that Dean Collins moves into his new position.  An international search for a new Dean is 

now underway, with the hope that he/she will start in July, 2011. 

 

We were pleased to welcome Mr. Shawn Bugden (epidemiology and pharmacy outcomes), Dr. Emmanuel Ho 

(pharmaceutics) and Dr. Harris Iacovides (clinical pharmacy) to the Faculty. These individuals build on a strong foundation 

of excellent teachers and productive researchers. Faculty members have published extensively in top peer reviewed 

journals and represented the Faculty of Pharmacy and University of Manitoba very well internationally. Local research has 

influenced pharmaceutical development, clinical practice and health policy internationally.  

 

In September 2010, we welcomed 55 new students into the Faculty of Pharmacy. This maintained a similar enrollment as 

the previous year to help meet the demand for pharmacists. It is no surprise that these students are some of the brightest 

individuals, but it’s always a source of pride to hear of their volunteer activities that impact people’s lives. Pharmacy 

students participated in several community service activities including volunteering with the Canadian Diabetes 

Association, participating in H1N1 and seasonal influenza vaccination clinics, providing care to inner city individuals at 

the WISH Clinic and raising over $20,000 for multiple sclerosis research.  

 

Our alumni and friends of the faculty contribute significantly to our success and we are pleased to highlight their 

contributions in this report. The Class of 2009 presented their inaugural ―Passion and Commitment Award‖ and thanks to 

the generosity of Mr. William Eamer, four new scholarships will be awarded to one student in each year of the Pharmacy 

program. The Faculty appreciates all of the support received from so many generous people, and we extend our thanks for 

all of the hard work, provided by so many, to achieve the success that the faculty has enjoyed.  

http://www.pebc.ca/
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2. Undergraduate Admissions 

 

Enrolment statistics for 55 students in the 2010 B.Sc.(Pharm.) admission cohort compared with the 2009 cohort are 

provided.  Applications for admission to the B.Sc.(Pharm.) program increased by 32% in 2010, from 232 to 306 (five- year 

average 266).  Applications remain strong despite new admissions criteria increasing minimum GPA requirements from 

3.0 to 3.5. The average entry level AGPA for the regular pool was 4.1, consistent with the five-year average of 4.1.  

 

 In 2010, 95% of successful applicants were graduates from high schools in Manitoba, with 24% from rural locations. 

 Sixty-two percent of the current admission cohorts are female.  

 There are currently 12 aboriginal students (6%) enrolled in the Faculty (self-declared).  

 

The following table provides information on class sizes within the program.  

 

   Number of Undergraduate Students 

Enrolment    2010/11    

Year 1    55             

Year 2          57             

Year 3          48             

Year 4          42            

 Total                      202           

 

3. Message from the Senior Stick—Justin Ling, Class of 2010 

 

At the conclusion of this academic year, I am faced with the challenge of summarizing the many accomplishments of the 

Faculty of Pharmacy student body in a single, short communication. The incredible ambition, talent and diversity of the 

students has always overwhelmed and humbled me, and I am privileged that they chose me to represent them. The students 

continue to show that beyond classrooms and textbooks are innovative citizens seeking to contribute to the improvement of 

their communities, and the betterment of themselves.  

 

The academic year of 2009-2010 demonstrated that students from the University of Manitoba continue to perform 

admirably amongst pharmacy students at both national and local levels. At Professional Development Week 2010 in 

Toronto, Manitoba won the Patient Counseling Competition and the Pharmafacts Bowl, and placed second in the 

Compounding and Scientific Literature Competitions. This was a tremendous achievement for representatives from the 

second-smallest faculty in Canada. In Winnipeg, two of the three co-chairs at the WISH (Winnipeg Interprofessional 

Student-run Health) Clinic were pharmacy students, and the Red Party in support of CanFAR (Canadian Foundation for 

AIDS Research) was an unmitigated success in its second year. In extracurricular activities, Pharmacy repeated as 

intramural basketball champions and Team Pharmacy participated in its second MS Walk, while the Blister Pack was on a 

one-year hiatus from the Manitoba Marathon.  

 

With the passage of our second year at the Bannatyne Campus, there remain several opportunities for faculty, staff and 

students at the Faculty of Pharmacy. There have been challenges instituting closer relationships with students of other 

health care professions despite the close proximity of the faculty buildings, maintaining local student involvement in 

Student Council and CAPSI (Canadian Association of Pharmacy Students and Interns) initiatives, and developing closer 

ties with our neighboring University of Saskatchewan pharmacy students. The onus is on student leadership and 

involvement to take advantage of these areas of growth.  

 

I have been extremely fortunate to work with such dedicated and supportive faculty and staff for the past two years in my 

role as Co-Stick for Student Council. We students count ourselves fortunate to have witnessed and participated in the 

ongoing development of pharmacy practice in Manitoba and beyond. Our professors – our mentors and guides – have been 

instrumental in helping us to find our places in the profession, and we will strive to realize our potential using the tools 

they provided, the knowledge they imparted and the high standards they demonstrated.  

 

4. PEBC Results 2010 

 

The University of Manitoba Faculty of Pharmacy Class of 2010 was ranked 3rd in Canada (in terms of overall pass rate) in 

the 2010 Pharmacy Examining Board of Canada (PEBC) Qualifying Examination.  However, on this two part certification 

exam, the graduating class as a group achieved the second highest overall scores on each part of the exam.   

 

While Manitoba offers one of the smaller Pharmacy programs in Canada (ranked 9 of 10 in terms of student numbers), our 

performance in the national qualifying examination has typically been good with graduates achieving a number 1 ranking 

on the exam three times in the last 5 years. 
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5. Philanthropist’s ongoing support rewards Pharmacy students 

 

This year more pharmacy students will benefit from the generosity of Mr. William G. Eamer (BComm(Hon)/72, MBA/73, 

FCA) thanks to his continued commitment to student awards. By increasing funding in The William G. Eamer/Manitoba 

Pharmaceutical Association Scholarship for Student Excellence in Pharmacy fund, Mr. Eamer increased the endowment 

fund’s annual offering. Four scholarships each valued at $1,000 will be awarded — one to a student in each year of the 

Pharmacy program.  

 

In 2004, Mr. Eamer also established the MPhA/William G. Eamer Graduate Scholarship in Pharmacy at the University of 

Manitoba. From 1993 to 1996 he served as Executive Director of the Manitoba Society of Pharmacists, which included an 

appointment as liaison member to the Council of the Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association (MPhA). In recognition of his 

continued commitment and dedication to the pharmacy profession and his generous support of Pharmacy students, the 

MPhA awarded Mr. Eamer an honorary membership in 2008.  

 

6. Report on Funding Received from the Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association, 2010 

 

The Faculty of Pharmacy’s mission is to create an educational environment that facilitates the integration of pharmacy 

scholarship in the areas of practice, research and service to effect optimal health outcomes for individuals and 

communities, and the advancement of the profession of pharmacy.  We are pleased to be joined in this mission by the 

pharmacists of Manitoba who contribute to the delivery of the professional program in many ways, including a financial 

contribution as part of the annual licensing process. The funds collected by The Manitoba Pharmaceutical Association 

(MPhA) on behalf of The University of Manitoba, Faculty of Pharmacy from the levy on all pharmacists’ practicing 

licenses in 2010 were $134,000. The funds were allocated to the following initiatives in support of the professional 

program. 

 

 Sessional teaching costs for maternity leaves, (Pharmacy Skills Laboratories (PSL), Clinical Pharmacy course, 

Structured Practical Experiential Program [SPEP]); $68,053 

 Conference attendance by practice faculty; $8,395 

 Support for SPEP Program (PHRM 1700, PHRM 2700, PHRM 3700 and PHRM 4700). Support includes rural site 

visits, preceptor workshops, spring experiential ―summit‖ meeting and preceptor recognition; $27,542 

 CPR course for students; $5,220 

 Support for the Standardized Patient program (PHRM 1100, PHRM 2100 and PHRM 3100). Support included 

standardized patient training, case planning and development workshops; $8,000 

 Additional computers in Pharmaceutics lab and the Pharmacy Skills Labs; $14,690 

 $2,100 unallocated 

 

We are very grateful for your support and look forward to developing new initiatives associated with passing new pharmacy 

regulations in Manitoba. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lavern M. Vercaigne, Pharm. D. 

Acting Dean and Professor 

Faculty of Pharmacy 
 

 

CSHP LIAISON’S REPORT  

-  Barb Sproll  

 

Vision  

 A dynamic society 

 The influential voice for hospital pharmacy 

 Inspiring practice excellence 

 Fostering leadership and professional growth 

 Values 

 Practice excellence and innovation 

 Collaboration 

 Professional development and mentorship 

 Accountability to members 

 The commitment of our members to our Society and the profession 
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CSHP 2015 
 

The most current campaign is the ―Commitment to Act Campaign‖.  It asks pharmacy directors and/or managers to commit to 

CSHP 2015 and the Blueprint for Pharmacy through the following key elements: 

 Align your pharmacy department’s strategic plan for patient care and pharmacy practice excellence with the CSHP 

2015 and the Blueprint for Pharmacy objectives. 

 Encourage and support your pharmacists to improve the effective, evidence-based and safe use of medications for 

optimal patient outcomes.  

 Share success stories. 

 

Tool kits are currently under development to help address the following CSHP 2015 objectives: 

 Objective 1.3 - Pharmacists manage medication therapy for INPATIENTS with complex and high risk medication 

regimens in collaboration with other members of the healthcare team. 

 Objective 3.1 - Pharmacists are actively involved in providing care to individual patients that is based on evidence, 

such as the use of quality drug information resources, published clinical studies or guidelines, and expert consensus 

advice. 

 Objective 4.7 - A unit-dose system is utilized to distribute medications for 90% or more of the total beds. 

 

Membership 

 

As of December 2010, there are 200 members of Manitoba Branch. 

  

Council: 

 Lois Cantin - President    

 Jarrid McKitrick - President Elect and Awards Committee Chair 

 Barb Sproll - Past President and MPhA Liaison  

 Jonathan Fine - Treasurer 

 Jan Beales - Secretary and CSHP 2015 Liaison 

 Colette Raymond - Advocacy   

 Al Eros - National Branch Delegate 

 Chad Leachman - Communications  

 Barb Sproll - Membership Committee Chair 

 Ashley Walus - Student Liaison 

 

Award Recipients for 2010: 

 Merck Frosst Achievement Award - Alfred Gin  

 Past President Award - Barb Sproll   

 PPC Bohdy Jaworski Award - Julie Mistri    

 New Pharmacist Award - Tara Hoop 

 Future Professional Pharmacy Student Award - Jordan Ducheminsky 

 PPC Travel Grant - Crystal Evans & Carol Davis  

 Pfizer Residency Award - Kim Caouette 

 Manitoba Branch Residency Award - Kim Caouette 

 

Advocacy 

 

2010’s campaign was entitled ―Prescribing by Pharmacists‖.  This national campaign provided information to a number of stake 

holders in the health care system including; pharmacy directors, ministers of health, members of legislative assemblies, 

regulatory bodies, pharmacy professional organizations, hospital CEOs and chief human resources officers. 

The key messages of this campaign were: 

 Pharmacists who prescribe do so as part of providing high-quality patient-centred care.  

 Pharmacists work in collaborative professional environments. 

 Pharmacists are obliged to comply with legislative practice regulations, including standards of practice and codes of 

ethics. 

 Authorization to prescribe further enables pharmacists to perform the activities of outcomes-focused care, including 

managing medications and monitoring care. 
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Education Events 

 

Mb Branch: 

 Educational Evening - presentation by  Dr. Bill Semchuk  on ―Manage the Clot: An Update for Pharmacists‖ at The 

Hotel Fort Garry – May 27th, 2010   

 Spring/Summer Half Day - ―The Clinical Pharmacist Sampler - Snappy Snippets in Current Clinical Practice‖ at 

Apotex Centre – June 26th, 2010 

 Fall Grand Rounds -  presentation by Dr. Mark Friesen on "Management of QT Prolongation" at the Grace General 

Hospital – September 22nd, 2010 

 Fall Half Day - presentations by Dr. Wendy Lim & Dr. Warkentin on ―Topics in Thromboembolism‖ at the Fort Garry 

Hotel – October 23rd, 2010 

 Educational Evening - "What's New in the Management of Patients With Atrial Fibrillation" presented by Dr. Heather 

Kertland at DeLuca’s Restaurant – November 25th, 2010 

 

National: 

 41st Annual Professional Practice Conference (PPC) 2010 January 30th – Feb 3rd, Toronto, ON 

 36th Annual Banff Seminar:  Western Branches, CSHP          

 March 19 – 21st 2010, Banff, AB  

 CSHP Summer Educational Session (SES) 2010                 

 August 7– 10th, 2010, Halifax, NS  

 Continuing Education Online www.cshp.ca/programs/onlineeducation/index_e.asp 

Students and Residents: 

 Student Symposium - overview of the practice of hospital pharmacy presented to pharmacy students by 4 current 

practitioners in different care settings – October 26th, 2010. 

 Residency Night – essay presented by current WRHA Hospital Practice Resident on the following topic: ―Pharmacy 

often finds itself initially left out of collaborative health teams. How do we as a profession better establish our roles as 

an essential component of these care groups and not an afterthought?‖ – November 18th, 2010. 

 

Strategic Planning 

 

Branch strategic planning meeting was held November 30th, 2010. The primary topics were: 

 Revision of policies and procedures in accordance with National’s by-laws. 

 Improve coordination and tracking of local fund raising activities. 

 Funding for attendance at out-of-province educational events. 

 

Communication: 

 Newsletter (Pharmashare) published 3 times annually 

 Websites:    

Branch - www.cshp-mb.ca 

National - www.cshp.ca 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barb Sproll 

CSHP Mb Branch Liaison to MPhA Council 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS  

 

 

 

 

http://www.cshp.ca/programs/onlineeducation/index_e.asp
http://www.cshp-mb.ca/
http://www.cshp.ca/


NOTES: 
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